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KELLOGG COMPANY 2002 ANNUAL REPORY

With 2002 net sales of over $8 billion, Kellogg Company is the world's leading producer of cereal and a
leading producer of convenience foods, including cookies, crackers, toaster pastries, cereal bars, frozen
waffles, veggie foods, pie crusts, and ice cream cones. The Company's brands include Kellogg's,®
Keebler,® Pop-Tarts,® E£ggo,® Cheez-t,® Nutri-Grain,® Rice Krispies,® Murray,® Austin,® Morningstar
Farms,® Famous Amos,® and Kashi.® Kellogg products are manufactured in 19 countries and marketed
in over 180 countries around the world.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(doltars in miffions, except per Share data) 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000  Change
Net sales $8,304.1 10% $75484 24% $6,086.7 -1%
Gross profit as a % of net sales 45.0% .8 pts 44.2% 1 pts 441%  -1.1pts
Operating profit 1,508.1 29% 1,1679 18% 9898 19%
Earnings before exiraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of accounting change 720.9 50% 4820 -18% 5877 74%
Earnings per share before extraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of accounting change
Basic 1.77 49% 1.19 -18% 145 75%
Diluted 1.75 48% 118 -19% 1.45 75%
Net earmnings 7209 52% 4736 -19% 5877 74%
Net earnings per share
Basic 1.77 51% 117 -19% 1.45 75%
Diluted 1.75 51% 116 -20% 1.45 75%
Net cash provided by operating activities,
reduced by capital expenditures 745.4 -13% 8555 32% 650.0 23%
Dividends per share $ 101 - $ 101 2% $ 995 4%
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n a world — and at a time — of great uncertainty, over 25,000

-+ Kellogg employees are working every day to make our Company
an example of consistency and reliability. In short, we strive to make Kellogg a
dependable, long-term investment for you.

Strong Results in 2002

Kellogg employees delivered an cutstand-
ing performance in 2002, which led to very
healthy returns for our share owners.

¢ Our earnings per share jumped 51%.
Excluding non-comparable items from
the prior year's results, as well as the
favorable impact of first-quarter legal
settlements and elimination of most
amortization in 2002, EPS was up a
solid 12% year-over-year.

= Our stock’s total return to share owners
(share price appreciation plus dividends)
was 17% in 2002, on the heels of an
equally impressive 19% return in 2001.
By contrast, the 2002 return on the S&P
Packaged Food index was only 3% and
the overall market, as measured by the
S&P 500 index, returned a negative 22%.

* We generated another year of
outstanding cash flow, reaching the
$1 billion mark before making year-end
voluntary cash contributions to
our employee benefit plans. This gave
us the financial flexibility to not only

e The Company’s net sales increased by Carlos M. Gutierrez make these contributions but also pay
10%, boosted by owning Keebler Foods Kellogg Chairman of the Board down debt.
for one additional quarter versus the and Chief Executive Officer
prior year. On a comparable basis, adjusting for » The integration of Keebler, the largest acquisition in
that acquisition and a small divestiture, our net our Company's history, has been executed more
sales growth was 4%, smoothly and quickly than we anticipated. While this
integration is not yet complete, the acquisition has
e Qur operating profit increased by 29%, or 8% on a already given us enhanced capabilities, and its cost
comparable basis, which excludes non-comparable savings have come in sooner than expected.
items from the year-earlier period and the
elimination of most of our amortization in 2002, In summary, 2002 was a year in which we were
Importantly, it was driven by strong gross profit mar- able to accelerate our progress on all of our key
gin expansion, enabling us to increase substantially financial metrics.

our investment in new products and brand-building.

DEPENDABLE: Consistent Investment Return for Share Owners.
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FOCUSED STRATEEY

Even after acquiring Keebler Foods, we are still a very simple and
focused business. We compete in a few select categories, in which we
are the leader or hold a strong number two position. We passionately
believe this intense focus is a competitive advantage in a world of larger
and highly diversified food companies. Our priorities are as follows:

GROW CEREAL.

Ready-to-eat cereal continues to generate more than half of our net
sales, with high profit margins and return on invested capital. We are
determined to strengthen our global leadership position, and we believe
that demographic trends and concerns about obesity and health will
favor the cereal category. Our 2002 results in many key markets around
the world validate our belief that, properly managed, the cereal category
can grow and we can increase our share. This has been evident, first
and foremost, in our U.S. cereal business, which was the first market to
implement Volume fo Value, an operating principle described on pages
4 and 16,

EXPAND SNACKS.

We are well-positioned to capitalize on the rapid growth of the whole-
some snacks category. We have great brands with powerful nutrition
credentials, and we have the proven ability to make grain- and
fruit-based foods that are both wholesome and fun. The acquisition of
Keebler not only added cookies and crackers to our snacks portfolio, it
also gave us direct store door distribution in the United States. In core
International markets, meanwhile, the wholesome snacks categories
are still in relatively early stages, and we are well-positioned to grow
these businesses.

PURSUE PROFITABLE GROWTH.

We participate in several other attractive categories, going to market
with powerful brands capable of profitable growth. Eggo®, Pop-Tarts,®
and Morningstar Farms® are all category leaders with opportunities for
growth and margin expansion. The Kash/® brand is being extended to
categories beyond cereal. Meanwhile, we are building scale in alternate
channels, such as foodservice, vending, and convenience stores. We will
also look externally for opportunities such as licenses, alliances, and
small acquisitions.

DEPENDABLE: Re/iable Sales and Earnings Growth.
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EFFECTIVE OPERATING PRINCIPLES

We recognize that strategy means nothing without execution. At Kellogg,
we translate our strategy into action through three operating principles.
Although they sound simple, they have a profound effect on the way we
manage our business.

VOLUME TO VALUE.

As a branded food company, what really counts are the dollar sales we
generate — not how much tonnage we can move through our system.
Strategically, Volume to Valuge means adding value for consumers, rather
than discounting price. From a financial standpoint, it requires focusing on
the brands, products, and investments that generate the highest net sales
and gross profit margins. Expanding gross profit margins allow us to
invest more in brand-building and new products.

MANAGE FOR CASH.

We believe profit means nothing if it cannot be turned into cash. Kellogg
people have made extraordinary progress in this area, and today we are
one of the top cash generators in our industry. We are intensely focused
on reducing working capital, and we are very disciplined with our capital
expenditures. This has allowed us to improve our financial flexibility.

SWEAT THE EXECUTION.

Execution ultimately drives results, and Kellogg people are ready to
execute. We are now structured for better execution. For example, our
integrated business units and our improved compensation incentive
system create better accountability and alignment of objectives. We also
set realistic targets. Too often in the past we developed targets that were
too high and forced short-term actions - like cutting brand-building
investment. Today, our growth targets are challenging, but they are realistic
enough that we can do what is right for the sustainable health of our
Company. Finally, we share proven ideas across functions, businesses, and
geographies; our managers realize that these are the smartest bets they
can make. Our portfolio is focused enough, and consistent enough across
the globe, that we can share ideas from business to business, creating
another great advantage for us.

"ﬁ

7 REALISTIC TARGETS S

Yy Low single-digit net sales growth 2

Mid-single-digit operating profit growth

( ” High single-digit £PS growth o
Y

DEPENDABLE: Superior Execution.
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GOOD PEOPLE, GOOD VALUES

The key to our recent and future success is our people. Having the right
people in the right jobs created our outstanding plans and execution in
2002. Our entire organization deserves credit for its integrity and commit-
ment to the Company.

In the past year, there were several promotions and transitions among our
leadership ranks. Reflecting the strength of our finance organization, John
Bryant, our chief financial officer, was promoted to executive vice president,
while Jeff Boromisa, our corporate controller, and Steve Perry, head of tax
and treasury, were made senior vice presidents of the Company. Jeff
Montie, president of our Morning Foods division, was promoted to senior
vice president in recognition of his outstanding leadership.

In early 2003, Larry Pilon joined our Company as executive vice president,
human resources, bringing his considerable experience and leadership
skills to our management team. He succeeds Artie Byrd, who is retiring
after an outstanding 38-year career at Kellogg that included key leader-
ship roles in supply chain and, most recently, human resources.

Throughout the Company, our operating principles and our Company
values are being embraced and we strive 1o bring them to life every day.
We are proud of our values and have included them on page 20 of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of our 25,000 employees and our Board of Directors, | thank
you, our owners, for your confidence in us. We take our role as
stewards of your capital very seriously, and we are committed to
making Kellogg a dependable investment for you.

Carlos M. Gutierrez
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

The talent, commitment, and values
of Kellogg's people are the keys to
the Company's success.

DEPENDABLE: Fairness% and Integrity in Everything We Do.
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o ﬂ 0 UNITED STATES
Our ability to grow our cereal business has been

most evident in the United States, where our cereal
sales increased 6% in 2002, on the heels of a 2%

— gain in 2001, Since this was the first market to
/ | T implement Volume to Value, it is the furthest along in
/ [ *, the turnaround and a model for what we can achieve
' Snacks ‘ in our other businesses.
Cereal \‘ 320/0 .- - - N -
53% | U.5. READY-TO-EAT CEREAL j
i Met Sales Growth ‘
| 15% e
AN | Other 6%
\_j\
" 2%
Ready-to-eat cereal is our heritage, and it accounts , e
for a little more than half of our global net sales. ‘
While diversification has brought this percentage I ‘ i
down from about 70% two years ago, we remain L —
more committed to this category than any other ‘ v
company in the world. | 1%
! 2000 2001 2002 ‘
In our view, cereal is the ideal foundation for our " Better execution and implementing Volume to Value |
portfolio. [t is no fad — ready-to-eat cereal consump- boosted sales growth for Kellogg's U.S. cereal
tion has grown steadily for nearly a century, offering business. g
consumers good value (low cost per serving), conven- T
lence (just add milk), nutrition (grains, vitamins), taste,  Includes sales to the retail channel only.

and variety. It reacts to brand-building efforts, such as
advertising and consumer promotion. It generates
high profit margins that can fund brand-building
investment to sustain growth. For our retail customers,
it is one of the most profitable — and most shopped -
categories in the store,

It is by no means easy to grow a category as large
and established as ready-to-eat cereal, However, in
the last two years, we've proven it can be done. In
cereal, like virtually every other food category, con-
sumption tends to sag when the brand leaders fail to
excite consumers through innovation, advertising, and
value-added promotion. Price promotion does not

drive cereal consumption; brand-building does. . leff Wiontie .

Kellogg has returned to brand—bufiding, changing its Senior Vice President, President, U.S. Morning Foods
focus from discounting prices to adding value for “History has shown that brand-building is what
consumers. In 2002, this led to outstanding growth grows the cereal category. Adding value to con-
in our U.S, cereal business and a return to growth in sumers, in the form of exciting innovation, adver-

our International cereal operations. tising and consumer promotion, and mixing it with

superior sales execution, has resufted in profitable
growth for Keflogg and our customers.”

6 Kellogg Company



1.8, READY-TO-EAT CEREAL
Kellogg’s % Dollar Share of Category
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‘; Kellogg's dollar share of the U.S. ready-to-eat cereal ‘
category has increased for three consecutive years.

Source: Information Resources, Inc.; Food, Drug & Mass
channels, excluding Wal*Mart; rolling 52 week periods.

Quality Centrol  Two Kellogg employees at our Battle Creek
cereal plant check a production run of Rice Krispies® cereal.
Procedures at our production facilities ensure consistent quality in
our products.

A key element to our renewed success in U.S, cereal
has been the prioritization of resources. By assessing
our strengths and weaknesses in the cereal category,
we have allocated our resources to the highest
return opportunities. In 2002, this allowed us to grow
and gain share with our most profitable brands. This
favorable mix shift was reflected in a strong increase
in our average selling price in 2002.

A dramatic increase in the frequency and effective-
ness of our consumer promotions has been another
key to our success. Toys in the box, on-pack DVDs,
sweepstakes, and movie tie-ins are examples of
adding value for consumers. In 2002, our value-added
promotions included tie-ins to major motion pictures
like Spider-Man®, products based on popular charac-
ters like Scooby-Doo™, continuity programs like
American Airlines® miles, and holiday promotions like
special Halloween versions of some of our biggest
kids' brands. When we add value, we do not have to
discount as much. As a result, in 2002, our average
price of brands sold on promotion increased.

. U.S. READY-TO-EAT CEREAL
Share of Advertising Spending

‘ " Share of Doliar Sales
[ Share of Ad Spend 37%

| 33% 33%
| 32% S

! 2000 2001 2002

', More and better advertising contributed to Kellogg's
i
. increased share of category sales.

Sources: Information Resources, Inc. Food, Drug & Mass
channels, excluding Wal*Mart; Nielsen AdViews. Data for
2002 advertising spending is through October.

Advertising is an important way to grow a category
like cereal. We have stepped up our media invest-
ment in U.S. cereal, greatly increasing our share of
the overall category's advertising. We are not just
spending more — we are investing our advertising
behind the brands and segments generating the best
returns. A perfect example in 2002 was our “Lose 6
Pounds in Two Weeks" advertising campaign, which
recommended eating cereal for two meals a day over
a two-week period. Largely as a result of the cam-
paign, value-added brands Special K& and Smart
Start® grew 14% and 39%, respectively, in 2002,
sustaining growth long after the ad campaign was
off the air.

1,crunchy 5o

Swed’
= oat cluster?

Rico &
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from two very successful launches, Heart to Heart™
and Organic Promise™,

READY-TO-EAT CEREAL

§ Saies at Retall by Products Launchied
.asi 3 Yoars ;
—_— Sales execution has been another ingredient in our
T Category ‘ success. Our sales force has been a major driver

[ Kellogg 14% behind our improved sales mix, by focusing on net
sales dollars instead of tonnage volume, and by
prioritizing our most profitable brands. An improved
lineup of new products and consumer promotions has

‘ A% 4% 5% o0 | | allowed our sales people to rely less on price

— discounting. Our addition of over 200 in-store sales
| representatives in 2001 has already paid off in the
= form of better customer service and in-store execution.
o 2000 2001 2002
i |
I New product leadership is an important part of ‘ Brand-building investment and improved execution

‘ Kellogg's U.S. cereal growth story. | have a way of breeding further success. We now

- ) have access 1o better promotional properties and
Source: Information Resources, inc.; Food, Drug & Mass licenses. Our retail customers want to work with us
channels, excluding WalMart. ; more closely, knowing we are investing to grow one
: - of their most profitable categories.

Innovation excites consumers in the cereal category.
In 2002, Kellogg again led all cereal companies in
share of category innovation, By prioritizing our
resources behind truly differentiated products, our
new offerings have commanded premium prices and
generated strong profit margins. Introduced in 2001,
Special K& Red Berries continued to grow rapidly in
2002, even as competitors rushed to launch imita-
tions. We leveraged our long-term alliance with
Disney to launch a line of cereals aimed at the kids'
segment. The launch of Scooby-Doo™ cereal capital-
ized on the release of the movie, and it has continued
to gain share. Our Kashi® brand, which leads the
rapidly growing natural-cereal segment, benefited

ARt ittt b mSino ]

The Art of the Sale A sales team maps out the execution of the
launch of new Tony's Cinnamon Krunchers™ cereal. Careful
planning is critical to an effective sales effort.

All of these efforts helped us to drive the U.S. cereal
category's first year of dollar sales growth since
1999, and we gained nearly a full point of category
share. This was our third consecutive year of dollar
share improvement in a highly competitive category.
, Indeed, the category data perfectly describe Volume ‘

e N ;- to Value at work. First of all, our base sales, or sales }
% . without any price promotion, increased by 6% in

e M, DRy , 2002; we were the only branded player to grow base

Brainstorming A marketing team from our U.S. Morning Foods sales. These are the most profitable sales we can
division discusses a potential advertising campaign. Effective make, and their growth suggests we were successful
brand-building requires great ideas and execution.

8 Kellogg Company



1.8, READY-TO-EAT CEREAL CATEGORY

2002 Compared o 2001
Rest of
Kellogg Category ‘
‘ * Yalue Share 0.8 pt. -0.8 pt. ‘]
{ - Base Sales 6% 1% !
< Incremental |
Sales -4% 0% v

Kellogg's U.S. cereal share growth in 2002
i1 included a shift to highly profitable base sales
| and away from incremental - or promoted - sales.

Source: Information Resources, Inc.; Food, Drug & Mass
channels, excluding Wal*Mart; 52 weeks ended 12/29/02. |

)
i
\

in using innovaticn and brand-building to excite con-
sumers. Underlying metrics show how we were able to
grow our base sales. Our revenue from new products
launched over the past three years led the category,
our share of the category's advertising grew about 4
points, and our consumer promotions were top tier.
Our price on promotions at the retail level averaged
8% higher, even as our display levels remained strong.
Clearly, we focused on adding value instead of relying
on discounting prices. In fact, our incremental sales, or
sales made with some form of price promaotion, were
down 4%. This is a trade-off we will gladly make.

Smooth Operators Plant managers meet daily to review
scheduling, production efficiency, and quality control.

INTERNATIONAL

As in the United States, the cereal category in the
core markets of the United Kingdom, Canada, and
Australia had softened in recent years in the
absence of meaningful brand-building investment.

In 2002, Kellogg International took initial steps to
implement Volume to Value, and we began to shift
resources toward core markets. Value-added
consumer promotions were launched with great success,
allowing for less price discounting and driving improved
growth. Advertising was increased in these markets
with improved effectiveness, and innovation also
contributed to rejuvenating our sales performance.

‘[ KELLOGG INTERNATIONAL CEREAL

MET SALES GROWTH
Year-Quer-Year % Change in Local Currencies
5% “
\ d 3% “\
2% !
| | |
= = = \
First Half  Second Half Full Year !
2002 2002 2002 H
During the second half of 2002, cereal sales by !

Kellogg International gained momentum. ‘

i 1
[ — B

In 2002, our United Kingdom business’ sales growth
was supported by a double-digit increase in brand-
building. Our consumer promotions were particularly
strong. Examples include our “foot bowls” promotion
and a new advertising campaign for Coco Pops®.
New products like Hunny B's™, Frosties® Chocolate,
and Coco Pops Crunchers™ also improved our sales
and share performance.

Mexico posted another year of strong sales growth in
2002. In this high-growth market, Kellogg de Mexico
continued to outpace the category and grow dollar
share. Its share gains were led by the continued suc-
cess of our weight-loss challenge, a Tony the Tiger™
insert program, and a World Cup Soccer promotion,

Kellogg Company 9



‘ WEXICO READY-TO-EAT-CEREAL
Kellogg's % Yaiue Share of Category

\‘ Kellogg de Mexico posted its third consecutive

I 1999 2000 2001 2002 {
year of value share growth. ‘

+ Source: Nielsen. 2002 data is through November.

Throughout the year we were able to launch new
products like Striped Froot Loops®, Zucaritas® with
Energy Bolts™, and Special K& Red Berries, which
complement our existing strong brands.

Canada’s sales continued to grow in 2002. Value-
added consumer promotions, such as Star Wars™ and
Simpsons™ insert programs and a “watch in the box”
campaign, were launched with great success. This
value-adding strategy was reflected in a favorable
pricing and mix contribution.

Alan Harris
Executive Vice President, President,
Kellogg international

“All over the world, Kellogg’s® is considered g
local brand that stands for wholesome, fun food.
Following the Volume to Value model that was so
successtul in the U.S., we are exciting consumers
and improving our financial performance in key
markets across the globe.”

10 Kellogg Company

Australia’s sales growth in 2002 was primarily driven
by extending our biggest brands through launches
like Humungo Froot Loops® and new Nutri-Grain®
Choc Malt. We leveraged properties like Disney® to
deliver value-added consumer promotions, and for
the first time, we offered on-pack CD-rom games.
Increased advertising behind key brands also helped
drive strong consumption growth.

It is early, but the results are encouraging. In 2002,
our International cereal sales grew over 3% in local
currencies. By the second half of the year, our cereal
operations in each of our largest International mar-
kets — Australia, Canada, Mexico, and the United
Kingdom — experienced improved sales and share
performance. The strategy of adding value instead of
discounting price was reflected in strong pricing and
mix contribution in each market.

OUTLOOK FOR 2003

We demonstrated in 2002 that we can grow our
cereal business, and we will do so again in 2003.
While we do not expect to sustain the notably high
growth rates of 2002, our performance clearly indi-
cates that we are executing better and have
enhanced our competitiveness in this category.

In the United States, we have what may be our most
exciting lineup of new products and promotions yet.
Already, we have launched Fruit Harvest™, an adult-
targeted, great-tasting line of cereals using the same
high quality dried fruit as Specia/ K® Red Berries. We
added to the Disney line with cocoa-flavored Mud &
Bugs™, and introduced another kids-targeted cereal,
Smorz™. New Tony’s Cinnamon Krunchers'™ gives
us a delicious cinnamon-flavored offering and lever-
ages the brand power of Tony the Tiger™. Consumer
promotions will include toys in the box, like Disney
bobblehead figures and Cartoon Network® spinning
tops. We should have at least one movie tie-in with
the live-action version of Dr. Seuss’ The Cat in the
Hat®. Comparisons will be difficult given the
unusually strong sales performance we posted in
2002, but we will continue to grow this business.

Kellogg International will also grow its cereal busi-
ness in 2003, carrying on the momentum generated
in 2002. Innovation and brand-building will help drive
growth in our most important brands, which should
also lift the division’s pricing and mix contribution.
Many key markets will begin to receive increased
resources and continue to roll out Volume to Value.
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' Snacks
. 32%
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53%
15%
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Increasingly, consumers all over the world are turning
to convenient, portable snacks to sustain the energy
they need to get through their busy days. Kellogg's
wholesome snacks business, with well-known brands
like Nutri-Grain® and Rice Krispies Treats®, started
as a logical extension to our cereal business several
years ago. Today, these wholesome snack products
generate about $550 million of net sales worldwide.
In 2001, we significantly enhanced our snacking
portfolio, scale, and expertise with the acquisition of
Keebler's $2 billion crackers and cookies business in
the United States. In total, snacks now account for
about a third of our Company’s total sales. We are
extremely well-positioned to capitalize on snacking
trends by expanding this business further.
Specifically, we feel we have three distinct competi-
tive advantages in the snacks arena:

In Our Aisle. Snacks not only leverage our expert-
ise in grain- and fruit-based foods, but they also
respond to what we do best — brand-building, innova-
tion, and sales execution. In addition, wholesome
snacks are typically in the same aisle of the store as
our cereal products, enhancing our importance to our
customers and increasing the effectiveness of our
sales effort.

Powerful, Expandabie Brands. The Kellogg's®
trademark and refated brands already enjoy strong
awareness and trust by consumers. Originally cereal
brands, the Nutri-Grain® and Rice Krispies® names
transitioned easily to wholesome snacks. In 2002, our
brands’ awareness allowed us to launch Special K™

David WViackay
Executive Vice President, President, Kellogg USA

“I'm excited about the prospects for this business.
We have the brands and the DSD system. Now we
are adding the brand-building and innovation.
QOur cookies and crackers businesses have taken
a couple of years off from this kind of activity, and
our wholescme snacks business is ripe with inno-
vation opportunities. We are positioned to be a
premier snacks company.”

Bars without significant up-front marketing
investment ~ consumers already knew Kellogg's®
Special K® cereal, and the healthy, weight-control
position of the brand. Meanwhile, Keebler's Hollow
Tree® and Elves represent fun and indulgence, giving
immediate recognition and acceptance for its various
cookies and crackers products. Several other of our
cookie and cracker brands hold unique positioning in
consumers' eyes. Examples include Murray's® Sugar
Free cookies, Farmous Amos® ultra-indulgent cookies,
Sunshine® and its powerful Cheez-/t® crackers, and
Austin® single-serve cookies and crackers. All of
these brands can be leveraged, offering opportunities
to excite consumers and drive the franchise to higher
sales and profit.

Direct Store Door Distribution. DSD is a relatively
expensive way to distribute products, and building a
DSD system requires significant time and capital.
Thanks to the acquisition of Keebler, we already own
the third largest DSD system in the U.S. packaged
food industry. The economics of DSD are favorable
for impulse-driven products, which thrive on in-store
merchandising, and freshness-driven products, which
benefit from shelf rotation and faster turns.

Kellogg Company 11




It is well known that this is the best mode of distribu-
tion for cookies and crackers, but in 2002 we
demonstrated that this system can also work for our
wholesome snacks. No other manufacturer uses
DSD in the wholesome snacks aisle, giving us a dis-
tinct advantage not only for in-store merchandising,
but also for launching new products economically. In
2002, we leveraged DSD by expanding the Nutri-
Grain® line and launching a new wholesome snack,
Special K& Bars,

UNITED STATES

Whether consumers are looking for something indul-
gent, like Keebler® cookies; something savory, like
Keebler® and Sunshine® crackers; or something a
little healthier, like Nutri-Grain® bars, our portfolio
can meet their needs. Indeed, the advantages of our
diversified portfolio were evident in 2002, when soft-
ness in the cookie and cracker categories was offset
by strength in our wholesome snacks sales.

Our U.S. snacks business is currently undergoing a
strategic transition. In contrast to the acquire-and-
integrate strategy Keebler followed as a stand-alone
company, it now must grow internally. This means
shifting away from a singular dependence on in-
store merchandising and toward more brand-building
and innovation. Access to Kellogg's rescurces and
expertise in these activities will speed the transfor-
mation. We've already seen evidence this new
approach woarks. In 2002, resumed advertising and
innovation helped boost Cheez-t® sales by 10%,
despite formidable challenges by competitors. This

¥XELIOGG SNACK SALES AT RETAIL
Yagr-OQverYear % Change

|

* Cookies -2% ‘
‘ » Crackers 0% I
‘ ° Wholesome |
| Snacks 21% i
: Total 2% :

|
' Innovation and DSD drove solid growth for f
‘! wholesome snacks, while selective investment |
I kept biscuits stable. ‘

¢ Source: Information Resources, Inc.; Food, Drug &
Mass channels, excluding Wal*Mart; 52 weeks
ended 12/29/02.
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Directly to the Store Direct store door distribution improves our
ability to provide custamer service, rotate our products, and create
in-store displays that excite consumers,

strategic shift commenced in early 2003, and while
we do not expect it to be completed unti| 2004, we
should see signs of progress this year. Our cookie and
cracker brands will be supported with much more
brand-building activity, and we will launch numerous
new products, In wholesome snacks, a category that
increased at a high single-digit rate in 2002, we have
only scratched the surface of our potential. With DSD
and strong, expandable brands, we expect to grow our
existing snack products, while broadening the portfolio
1o capture additional growth. We are certainly off to a
good start. Our Nutri-Grain® franchise grew by more
than 25% in 2002, through the strength of our DSD
system and new products, such as Nutr-Grain® Yogurt
bars and Nutri-Grain® Minis.

INTERNATIONAL

A few years ago we attempted to roll out snack
products to as many International markets as possible,
only to realize our resources were being spread too
thinly. Today, we are prioritizing our resources, invest-
ing in snacking categories only within core markets
where we have scale and, therefore, sufficient
returns on investment. These core markets ~




notably Australia, Canada, Mexico, and the United
Kingdom - are ripe with opportunity for our snack
products. As in the United States, consumers in
these countries have increasingly demanded portable
snacks. Because of the strong heritage of our brands,
we have a competitive advantage in pioneering the
wholesome snacks category in these markets.

In the United Kingdom, where Nutri-Grain® bars are
already a category leader, we have added several new
products in the last couple of years. Nutri-Grain®
Elevenses®, for example, is a breakfast snack that is
gaining share. Real Fruit Winders® is Kellogg's first
entry into fruit snacks, and this franchise continued to
grow in 2002 due to line extensions and an innova-
tive multi-media marketing campaign. The Special K&
par was successfully launched in multiple European
markets in 2001,

KELLOGG INTERNATIONAL SNACKS
NET SALES GROWTH
Year-Quer-Year % Change in Local Currencias

18%

Focusing on core markets improved our returns and

2000 2001 2002 ’
drove growth for snacks in Kellogg International. \

In Canada, we added several snack products in
2002, complementing Nutri-Grain® bars and Aice
Krispies Treats® with Special K€ bars and Vector®
energy bars.

In Australia, snack sales grew more than 10% in 2002.
We continued to expand the sales of Healthy Snack
People, which we acquired in 2000. This business, along
with our existing line of K-time® bars, gives us a solid
snacking business in this country.

In Mexico, where we use a DSD system, we have sold
Nutri-Grain® bars for several years. We recently
launched Special KTM bars and cereal-and-milk bars.
We introduced cookies in 2002, leveraging Keebler's
expertise. The launch of All-Bran™ cookies looks
notably promising, and we continue to look for more
snack food opportunities in this core market.

QUTLOCK FOR 2003

In 2003, we expect to generate solid growth in
snacks. In the United States, wholesome snacks will
continue to benefit from the launch of new products,
such as cereal-and-milk bars. Cookies and crackers
should resume growth as they return to brand-
building and innovation activity. In our core
International markets, we will continue to expand our
snacks portfolios, helping to drive category growth
and build our scale toward higher returns on invest-
ment. We have a strong pipeline of products slated
for introduction in our core markets in 2003,

Differentiation New products fail if they do not deliver differenti-
ation versus competing products. At our WK. Kellogg Institute for
Food and Nutrition Research, our food scientists collaborate and
experiment in a state-of-the-art facility that gives Kellogg a com-
petitive advantage.

Lk Coakies swirked waty {1~

Kellogg Company 13




PURSUE
BROEIABIE
BROWT

Snacks
32%
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The remaining 15% of our portfolio’s sales comes
from a handful of businesses, principally in the
United States, that provide us with good profitability
and pockets of exceptional growth. Like our cereals
and snacks, these are grain-based foods with strong
profit margins and opportunities for growth.

Pop-Tarts® is our single largest brand in the United
States, and it has posted nearly 20 consecutive years
of growth. In 2002, we updated its packaging and
re-launched a more indulgent version of Pop-Tarts®
called Snak Stix®, which is aimed at expanding
afternoon consumption among teens. In 2003, we
plan to excite consumers with the launch of more new
products, starting with Pop-Tarts® Yogurt Blasts™.

Kashi® non-cereal products are composed principally
of the GoLean® line of natural weight-control bars. By
adding distribution and new varieties, this line experi-
enced exceptional growth in 2002. The brand has
become so strong that we were able to extend it well
beyond snack bars. Leveraging the expertise and
production of Keebler® and Eggo®, we launched Kashi
TLCs™ (Tasty Little Crackers) and GolLean™ Frozen
Waffles. Clearly this is an expandable brand in a
rapidly growing category.

We have a strong frozen foods business in the United
States and Canada. £Eggo® is a breakfast icon and an
unguestioned leader in frozen waffles. In 2002, we
focused on improving its cost structure. Going forward,
we plan to inject excitement into the categery through
innovation and consumer promotion. This business can
generate profitable growth through innovation,
marketing, and a focus on margins.

KELLOGG'S OTHER U.S. BUSINESSES
NET SALES GROWTH
Year-Qver-Year % Change

8%

5%

2000 2001 2002

! Innovation and added scale from prior years' X
| acquisitions led to continued solid growth in our other |
i U.S. businesses. ‘

Worthington Foods, best known for its Morningstar
Farms® brand of meat alternatives, also posted solid
growth in 2002, aided by new products and expanded
distribution. A consumer trend toward meatless diets
suggests plenty of room for innovation in this area.
The frozen veggie foods category is growing rapidly
and, as a result, Morningstar Farms® is one of our
fastest growing businesses.

Alternate channels also present growth opportunities. In
the United States, the addition of in-store representa-
tives has boosted our growth in the convenience-store
channel, and we are leveraging our increased snacks
scale in vending.

The combination of the Kellogg and Keebler businesses
in the foodservice channe! has created an operation
with greater scale and a broader portfolio. In addition,
we have launched new products specifically
designed for this channel, including our highly
successful cereal-in-a-cup. The result has been
meaningful share gains in the foodservice channel,
both in cereal and in biscuits.

O
\-\ZW / M
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Sales growth for our U.S. Food-Away-From-Home
division has come at a time when the foodservice
channel was slowed by a downturn in the economy.
We will continue to innovate in this channel, including
the customization of products for select foodservice
distributors and chain accounts. We will also pursue
alliances, such as the Rothbury Farms® croutons
partnership we entered into in 2002. In our
International markets, we have built a $100 million
foodservice business in just a few years. This, too,
offers opportunity for growth.

OUTLOOK FOR 2003 Janet Kelly
In 2003, these businesses should continue to provide Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and
a source of steady profitability, as well as better-than- Administration, General Counsel and Secretary
average growth. We will also look for growth
externally. We do not envision another large,
transformational acquisition like Keebler over the next
three years. However, especially in core markets, we
will consider smaller acquisitions that can add to our
cereal or snack portfolio. Such acquisitions can give
us new capabilities or add scale to existing strengths,
and even small ones can make a real difference.

“Qur business model does not require large
acquisitions to achieve sustainable growth;
small, add-on acquisitions can give us scale
and add capabilities to existing businesses.
Meanwhile, alliances can be a capital-efficient
way to leverage properties or capabilities.”

Strategic alliances, such as the one we have with
Disney, will also be important. The Kellogg's® brand
attracts the best partners, and our promotional
alliances are a true competitive advantage. We have
the know-how and a strong track record; now we
have the opportunity to leverage these alliances
across more of our categories and business units.

(
| KASHI

NET SALES ‘

$ paillions !
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|

‘ Even small acquisitions can create great value. ;
| Kashi has experienced explosive growth since we ;i
acquired it in June 2000.

| original
QrIBLNL o
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b

Off the Rack Innovative packaging and consumer-friendly
displays have helped lift Kellogg's growth in the food-away-
from-home channels.
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Volume to Value is one of our key operating principles.
It means adding value for the consumer to achieve
higher dollar sales and profit, rather than pushing vol-
ume through discounting. In our view, Volume to Value
is the best way to produce sustainable, profitable
growth. In addition, it is a logical and simple financial
model giving everyone in our organization clear and
measurable objectives. If we achieve these financial
objectives, a profitable cycle can be sustained.

Expand Gross Profit Margin. The cycle starts with
our gross profit margin, which measures the underlying
profitability of our products. In 2002, we focused on
selling more of our most profitable brands, including
new offerings carrying higher margins. In addition, we
continued to find new ways to improve productivity, and
we realized additional cost savings from the Keebler
acquisition. The results were outstanding. Our gross
profit margin improved by more than a percentage
point in 2002, when we exclude the rise in certain
consumer promotions that are now accounted for
within gross profit. In 2003, we expect a slight
improvement in gross profit margin, as efforts to
reduce our cost structure and improve our mix help
offset higher commodity costs and benefits expense.

CHEEL
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|
|

| APROVING GROSS PROYIY A}

| Excluding Consumer Prom

H 45.2% 45.1%
H ' "‘*—‘

2000 2001 2002 il

|
Implementing Volume to Value helped improve |
Kellogg's gross profit margin in 2002, |

1

|

|

\

( *2000 and 2001 gross margins are adjusted to exclude
| amortization eliminated by SFAS No. 142.

King Pouw
Executive Vice President, Operations and Technology

“Throughout our organization we are committed
to finding ways fto increase our underlying
profitability. In recent years, we have dramatically
improved our procurement processes and created
production and logistics efficiencies. We will
conlinue to generate savings, and all new
products will be assessed for their ability to
generate superior margins and utilize our existing
assel base.”

invest in Brand-Building. Gross profit is what
funds our brand-building investment. Our reported
gross profit margin would have been even higher in
2002, had it not been for an increase in value-added
promotions. These promotions, such as on-pack CDs
and in-the-box toys, are important brand-building
activities, and under new accounting standards, they
are now included in cost of goods sold.




Improved profitability allowed us to increase adver-
tising and other consumer promaotions, as well. In
2002, we increased our total local currency brand-
building investment by 8% on a comparable basis.
However, we didn't simply increase our advertising
and promotion spending — we also improved its
effectiveness, as reflected in our accelerated sales
and profit growth.

| INVESTING IN GUR BRANDS |
| 2002 ADVERTISING AND CONSUMER PROMOTION \

Year-Gver-Year % Chznge in Local Gurrencies,
+ Comparable Basis’

|
|
13% }

‘j i ’ 8%

| \ us. International Total d
\’

An improved gross profit margin allowed us to boost
i our brand-building investment in 2002. ;

*Comparable basis adjusts for the impact of acquisitions \
and divestitures,

L.

Cur brand-building efforts complemented the launch
of innovative products. These new products are
differentiated, designed to excite the consumer and
generate above-average profitability. They were
successful. In 2002, new products helped drive
growth in virtually all of our businesses.

Our realistic targets and focus on gross profit margin
should allow us to continue to increase our brand-
building investment at a rate exceeding our sales
growth in 2003 and beyond.

Drive Net Sales Growth. Volume is only one
component of net sales, which is the far more impor-
tant measure of top-line growth. We absolutely must
continue to create the ideas, products, and marketing
programs that excite consumers and lead to volume
growth. However, an equally important component is
our average price. This does not mean simply raising
list prices. It means adding enough value, through
innovation and brand-building, to shift our mix toward
our most profitable brands and to allow us to lessen
our price discounts.

In 2002, we prioritized brand-building and innovation
investments behind brands and products that could
give us the highest sales and profit. This created a
favorable sales mix and higher average pricing, lifting
our internal net sales growth to 4% in 2002. This
was better growth than we had experienced in the
previous couple of years, and it was higher than our
peer group average. In 2003, this focus on value
instead of volume should allow us to deliver on our
long-term target of low single-digit net sales growth.

r

| INTERNAL NET SALES GROWTH*
i Year-Over-Year % Changs

4%

‘\ 1% 1%

2000 2001 2002

A favorable sales mix and higher average pricing lifted i
|

i ourinternal net sales growth in 2002. |
B

*Excludes year-over-year impact of acguisitions,
! divestitures, foreign currency transiation, and 2001 Keebler

| integration impact.
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Manage for Cash faocuses the organization on driving
cash flow. Cash can enhance our financial flexibility,
and cash can be reinvested in the Company or
returned to share owners as dividends.

As with Volume to Value, our Manage for Cash prin-
ciple requires continuous attention to several key
metrics that sustain a virtuous cycle. One of the most
important changes we made to our Company was

IVIPROVING CORE WORKING CAPITAL” ;
As % of Net Sales w

11.7%  118%
L T

8.8%

—_ — — f—

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Reducing core working capital has helped Kellogg |
increase its cash flow. }
|

*Based on last 12 monthly periods’ average trade
receivables, inventory, and trade payables, divided by full-
year net sales.

PECAN SHORTBREAD
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assigning ownership of cash flow to each of our
business units, as well as making cash flow a key
determinant of incentive compensation. These
changes resulted in a significantly enhanced focus
on the key metrics of this Manage for Cash cycle.

Core Working Capital. Core working capital — trade
receivables and inventory, less trade payables — ties up
cash, and our managers have the ability and
responsibility to reduce it. We measure core working
capital as a percent of net sales, and we have made
excellent progress on this measure over the last two
years. In 2002, our core working capital was 8.8% of net
sales, down from 8.9% in 2001 and 11.8% in 2000,

. DiISCIPLINED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
' fAs % of MNet Sales

6.1%

C 43%
L N ¥ ) 79
o | JEER 0 8T% i

;~ﬂ

1998 199¢ 2000 2001 2002

Careful prioritization of resources has enabled the
Company to reduce capital expenditures as a ¥

| |
percentage of sales, 0

Capital Expenditures. We have become more dis-
ciplined on capital expenditures over the last couple
of years. Based on our analysis, capital expenditures
at 3% of net sales should be adequate to maintain
our assets, remain cost-competitive, keep up with
technological advances, and allow for growth. The
key is to prioritize resources for projects with the
fastest and largest cash paybacks, to design new
products and product enhancements that utilize
existing capacity, and to continuously improve our
productivity. We expect capital expenditures to be
about 3% of net sales again in 2003.

@1 Senstine.




| CASH FLOW {

$ Brittlions

“ 1000
, 856 | Benefit Plan i
H | }Bontribuﬁuns' |
i 850 : I
f: N 529 T ) j7216] i;
| 346 :
I i
= — - — -

98 99 00 01 02 i

Higher earnings, combined with reductions in working |
capital and capital expenditures as a percent of net ‘
. sales, resulted in another year of outstanding cash flow.
. * Voluntary Year-End Contributions .

Manage for Cash has produced exceptional cash
flow over the last two years, Our cash flow in 2002
allowed us to pay down over $500 million of debt and
make $254 million in voluntary after-tax contributions
to our pension and other postretirement funds.
Clearly, this focus on cash flow is improving our finan-
cial flexibility.

,,,,,, _ . S
TOTAL DEBT GUTSTANDING !
. % Biltions }
LT T e |
6.8 \
o 6.2 {‘
T 5.7 !

| - S m]

3/31/01 12/31/01 12/28/02

" Strong cash flow has enabled the Company to
quickly lower its debt outstanding since the Keebler
acquisition in March 2001.

Return on [nvested Capital. This is a measure of
how efficiently we are allocating our capital. As
Volume to Value continues to produce higher
earnings, and Manage for Cash holds down our
working capital and capital expenditures, our return
on invested capital will improve. Indeed, in 2002 our
ROIC began to improve not only year-over-year, but
sequentially, as well. Higher returns on our invested
capital should help earnings in the future, renewing
the sustainable Manage for Cash cycle.

John Bryant
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
“Today there is far more focus on cash flow than
ever before. By giving business units
accountability for cash How, and making cash
flow a component of individuals’ incentive
compensation, everyone in the organization is
committed to finding ways fo turn profit intc cash
meore quickly. This is allowing us to improve our
financial flexibility, which will contribute o making
us @ more dependable company in the future.”

Full Disclosure Members of our legal, accounting, treasury, and
investor relations departments meet regularly to ensure that our
financial position and results are disclosed in a manner that is fair,
full, and transparent.

R R =
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Our most important asset is our people. To allow them to reach their potential, we must foster
a positive work environment. A key element of this work environment is the strong set of
values that Kellogg Company has always practiced. In 2002, we formally updated our Kellogg
Values. They state our expectations about how we will act toward the Company, how we will treat
each other, and how we will represent the Company. They preserve what is precious about our
heritage, while freeing us to continue to improvise, improve, and innovate. We believe a company with the
right strategy, the right people, and the right values will deliver dependable performance over time.

We Act With Integrity And Show Respect
» Demonstrate a commitment to integrity and ethics
» Show respect for and value all individuals for their diverse backgrounds, experience, styles, approaches and ideas
» Speak positively and supportively about team members when apart
» Listen to others for understanding
* Assume positive intent

We Are All Accountable
= Accept personal accountability for our own actions and results
» Focus on finding solutions and achieving results, rather than making excuses or placing blame
» Actively engage in discussions and support decisions once they are made
* Involve others in decisions and plans that affect them

» Keep promises and commitments made to others

* Personally commit to the success and well being of teammates fa
We Are Passionate About Qur Business, Our Brands And Our Food

» Show pride in our brands and heritage

* Promote a positive, energizing, optimistic and fun environment

« Serve our customers and delight our consumers through the quality of our products and services ¢

 Promote and implement creative and innovative ideas and solutions {

> Aggressively promote and protect our reputation

ars Q>

We Have The Humility And Hunger To Learn

« Display openness and curiosity to learn from anyone, anywhere

» Solicit and provide honest feedback without regard to position

* Personally commit to continuous improvement and be willing to change

° Admit our mistakes and learn from them
= Never underestimate our competition

We Strive For Simplicity
» Stop processes, procedures and activities that slow us down or do not add value
« Work across organizational boundaries/levels and break down internal barriers
» Deal with people and issues directly and avoid hidden agendas
e Prize results over form

We Love Success

* Achieve results and celebrate when we do
« Help people to be their best by providing coaching and feedback
= Work with others as a team to accomplish results and win

= Have a "can-do" attitude and drive to get the job done

= Make people feel valued and appreciated

= Make the tough calls

O\ =
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“Relatively new to Kellogg, it didn’t take me long to
. . i W realize that there is a special culture here. The Values
Larry Pilon | 54 are taken very seriously, mixing a commitment to hard

Executive Vice President, . . .
Human Resources work and success with values of honesty and integrity.

Kellogg strives to be an employer of choice, and it truly
is a great place to work.”
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Vianagement’s Discussion and Analysis

Kellogg Company and Subsidiaries

Resuflts of operaltions
Overview

Kellogg Company is the world's leading producer of cereal and a
leading producer of convenience foods, including cockies, crackers,
toaster pastries, cereal bars, frozen waffles, meat alternatives, pie
crusts, and ice cream cones. Kellogg products are manufactured and
marketed globally. Our Company is managed in two major divisions —
the United States and International — with International further delin-
eated into Europe, Latin America, Canada, Australia, and Asia. This
organizational structure is the basis of the operating segment data
presented in this report.

Over the past three years, we have transformed our Company to align
with key operating principles first adopted in late 2000. These princi-
ples emphasize a stricter prioritization for resource allocation to the
United States and our other core markets, a stronger emphasis on cash
flow, and a focus on net sales value over shipment volume. This focus
drives gross margin expansion to fund marketing investment. We be-
lieve the progression of our financial performance aover this three-year
period reflects both the significant transition we have undertaken and,
more importantly, the ultimate success of our growth strategy.

During 2000, to facilitate resource prioritization, we reorganized our
company from four operating areas into two divisions — U.S. and
International. As a result, we initiated restructuring actions around
the world to support our strategy and new organization, including
staff reductions in our global organization, rationalization of interna-
tional convenience foods capacity, and restructuring of various non-
core markets to improve return on investment. In addition to the dis-
ruption of this significant restructuring, we faced many financial
challenges in 2000 such as softness in our U.S. convenience foods
business, higher energy prices and interest rates, weak foreign cur-
rencies, and inventory write-offs in Southeast Asia. Despite these
challenges, we were able to deliver net earnings growth through
manufacturing efficiencies, reduced advertising and overhead ex-
penses, and recognition of benefits related to U.S. tax credits.

During 2001, our Company experienced a significant transition re-
lated to the acquisition and integration of Keebler Foods Company
{the "Keebler acquisition”}, as well as the fundamental refocus of our
business model. While net earnings were dampened by increased in-
terest and tax expense, and other short-term financial impacts of this
transition, we achieved three important goals during 2001: increased
dollar share in the U.S. cereal category; pricing and mix-related im-
provements in gross profit margin; and the highest cash flow (net
cash provided from operating activities less expenditures for property
additions) to date in our Company’s history.

Building on the groundwork laid in 2000 and 2001, our Company in

2002 established a trend of solid performance in several key metrics:
internal sales growth, expansion of gross profit margin, and contin-
ued strong cash flow. We believe improved execution, increased
brand-building investment, and a focus on value over volume were
important drivers of this performance.

The following items affect the comparability of current and prior-
year results:

O OnJanuary 1, 2002, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS] No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
Under the provisions of this standard, substantially all of our
amortization expense was eliminated in periods subsequent to
adoption. Management's measure of operating segment profit-
ability has been restated for all prior years to conform to the current-
year presentation.

O Sales and operating profit for 2001 were reduced by the financial
impact of Keebler integration activities.

O Operating profit for 2001 and 2000 inciuded restructuring charges
related to implementing our operating principles and preparing
Kellogg for the Keebler integration.

O During 2001, net eamings included an extraordinary loss related
to extinguishment of long-term debt and a charge for the cumula-
tive effect of an accounting change.

Reported results are reconciled to adjusted results, as follows:

Net eamings (miflions)

Change vs. prior year

2002 2001 2000 2002 2007
Reported consolidated results $720.9 $4738 S5877 52200  -19.4%
Restructuring charges, net of credits - 205 64.2
Integration impact - 462 -
Amortization efiminated by SFAS No. 142 - 850 98
Extraordinary foss - 74 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change - 10 -
Adjusted consolidated results $7208 8633.7 $B61.5 13.8% -4.2%

Change vs. priorE
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
Reported basic net earnings per share S1Lm7 S 8145 513%  -193%

Net earnings per share

Dilution impagt (.02} (o -
Reported diluted net earnings per share $1.75 $1.16 3145
Restructuring charges, net of credits - 05 16
[ntegration impact - N -
Amortization eliminated by SFAS No. 142 - 2 02
Extraordinary loss - 02 -
Cumutative effect of accounting change - - -
LA_d)u_sted_ consalidated resuls $1.75 $1.85 $163 12.9% -49%

For 2002, the increase in adjusted net earnings per share of $.20 was
comprised of $.16 of business growth, $.09 from a reduced effective
income tax rate, 3.02 from favorable legal settlements during the first
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quarter, and $.01 from favorable foreign currency movements, partially
offset by $.06 from increased interest expense and $.02 related to an
increase in diluted shares outstanding versus the prior year.

For 2001, the decrease in adjusted earnings per share of $.08 was
primarily the result of §.34 from incremental interest expense, $.17
from a higher effective tax rate, and $.07 from unfavorable foreign
currency mavements. This was offset by $.50 from business growth,
including the results of the Keebler business.

Net sales and operating profit
2002 compared to 2001

The following tables provide an analysis of net sales and operating
profit perfarmance for 2002 versus 2001:

Other
United Latin operating Consoli-
(doflars in millions) States Euwrope  America () Corporate dated
2002 net sales $5,525.4 $1469.8  $8311 $6778 $-  §8,304.1
2001 net sales (a) $48894 $13607 $650.0 $648.3  $- 875484
Y change - 2002 vs. 2001:
Volume 2 - % 3% - -2%
Pricing/mix 3% 24% B.6% 56% - 4%
Subtotal - internal business 4.1% 2.4% 6.7% 24% - 4.0%
Integration impact () 4% - - - - %
Acquisitions & dispositions (c) 85% - - - - 55%
Foreign currency impact - 5.6% -8.6% 2.2% - M
Total change 13.0% 8.0% -29% 4.6% - 10.0%
ther
United Latin aperating Consali-
(doliars in millions) States Eurgpe  America () Corporate  dated
2002 segment pperating profit $1,0730  $2525  $170.1  $1040 ($915) $1508.1
2001 operating profit (d) §7465  $2458 ST S8 (8957 $11678
Restructuring charges (&) 295 @)} (&)} 14 27 333
Amortization () 1005 5 1 25 1038

2001 segment operating profit $ 8755  $2456  $1711  $103.1
% change ~ 2002 vs. 2001:

($80.5) $1304.8

During 2002, we achieved strong internal sales growth of 4% on a con-
solidated basis, resulting primarily from pricing and mix improvements
in all operating segments. U.S. net sales in the retail cereal business
increased approximately 6% and total international sales increased
over 3% in local currencies. Adjusting the prior period to a comparable
basis for the impact of acquisitions, divestitures, and Keebler integra-
tion activities, U.S. net sales in the retail snacks business increased
nearly 1%, as a double-digit increase in sales of our wholesome snack
products offset a decline in cockie and cracker sales. We believe this
decline was primarily a result of weak consumption in the cookie and
cracker categories throughout the year and our decision to cancel an
end-of-year sales force incentive in order to improve efficiencies in our
direct store door (DSD) delivery system.

During 2002, consolidated and U.S. internal operating profit in-
creased approximately 6% and 11%, respectively. Total international
local currency operating profit was approximately even with the prior
year, held down by a double-digit increase in marketing investment to
drive care market sales growth.

-During 2001, sales and operating profit were reduced by the financial

impact of Keebler integration activities {“integration impact”). This in-
tegration impact consisted primarily of 1) the sales and gross profit ef-
fect of lowering trade inventories to transfer our snack foods to
Kesbler's DSD system during the second quarter, 2} direct costs for em-
ployee incentive and retention programs, employee separation and re-
location benefits, and consulting contracts, and 3) impairment and ac-
celerated depreciation of software assets being abandoned due to the
conversion of our U.S. business to the SAP system. We estimate that
these activities reduced net sales by $17.8 million, increased cost of
goods sold by $5.6 million, and increased selling, general, and adminis-
trative expense by $51.0 million, for a total 2001 operating profit reduc-
tion of $74.4 million.

2001 compared {o 2000

Internal business 106% -31%  48%  -14% -105%  6.4% The following tables provide an analysis of net sales and operating

Integration impact (b) B7% - - - 88 8% profit performance for 2001 versus 2000:

Acquisitions & dispositions (c) 3.5% - - - - 2.3% =

Foreign currency impact - 5%  -5A% 2.2% -1% 8% United lain  operating Consoli-
Total change 226%  28%  -6% 8% -12%  158% (dofiars in millions) Sates  Europe  America (@  Coporate  dated
() 2001 net seles restated for the retroactive application of EITF No. 01-08. Refer to Note 1 within Notes to Consulidated 2001 net sales (a) $4,888.4 $13607 96500 8483 § ~— $7548.4

Financial Statements for further information.

(b) Impact of Keeblar integration aciivities during 2007. Refar to discussion of results of operations in paragraphs following these
tables for further information.

(c) Impact of results for the first twelve weeks of 2002 from Kesbler Foods Company, acquired in March 2001; and impact of
results for the comparable 2001 periad subsequent to the Apdl 28, 2002. divestiture of the Bake-Ling private label business.

(dy 2007 US. operating segment profitability restated for an internal realiocation of overhead batween corporate and U.S. opera-
tions.

(e} Refer to "Restructuring and other charges” section beginning on page 24 for further information

(N Pro forma impact of amortization efiminated by SFAS Ne. 142. Refer to Note 1 within Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further infarmation.

(9} Includes Canada, Austrafia, and Asia.
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2000 net sales (a) $32636 S$14622 $6243 §7161  $20.5 $5,086.7

% change - 2001 vs. 2000:

Volume B -68% 18 1% - 4%
Pricing/mix 19% 46% 3% - 1% - 2.3%
Subtotal - internal business 27%  -22% 48%  -24% - %
Integration impact (b} - 8% - - - - -3%
Aequisitions (c) 7% - - % - 236%
Foreign currency impact - -47% 1% 1% - 2%
Total change 498%  -6.8% 41%  -8.5% - 240%




Dther

United Latin ~ operating Consoll-

(doMars in miflions) States Furope  America ()  Corporate  dated
2007 operating profit (d) 5465 S2468 sto7  S116  ($887)  S11679
Restrusturing charges () 299 (2 (n 14 al 333
Amortization (f) 1005 - 5 1 2.3 103.6
2001 segment operating profit $875.5  $245.5 $171.1 $103.1  (890.5) $1,304.8
2000 operating profit (d) $669.2  $2085  S14B5 S6805  (S849)  S9898
Restructuring charges {g) 20 28.7 148 287 145 865
Amartization () 91 i 25 122

2000 segment operating profit  $670.3  $2352  $1617 $89.2 ($679) $1088.5
% change - 2001 vs. 2000

Internal business -4.8% 9.9% 5200 246% -87%  25%
Integration impact (b) 99% - - - N4% 68%
heouisitions {6) 45.4% - - B - 2B0%
Foreign currency impact - -5.5% % -96%  -132%  -38%
Total change 30.6% 4.48% 5.8%  156% -333% 19.8%

(2) 2001 and 2000 net sales restated for the refroactive appfication of EITF No. 01-08. Refer to Note | within Notes to
Consafidated Finansial Statements for further information,

{h) Imgact of Keebler integration ativities during 2001. Refer to pags 22 for further infarmation.

(¢} Impact of resulls for applicable partion of 2001 from Keebler Foods Company. acquired in March 2001; Kashi Company,
acquired in June 2000, and The Healthy Snack Peaple business, an Australian comvenience foods operation, acquired in July
2000.

(d) 2007 and 2000 LS. operating segment profitabilty restated for an internal reallocation of gverhead hetween corporate and
U.S. operations,

(e) Refer to "Restructuring and other charges™ section beginning on page 24 for further information.

() Proforma impact of amortization eliminated by SFAS No. 142. Refer to Note 1 within Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information.

(@ Includes Canada, Australia, and Asia.

On an internal business basis, consolidated net sales for 2001 in-
creased nearly 1%, as a 2% increase in U.S. cereal sales to the retail
channel was offset by declines in U.S. snack sales and in all interna-
tional segments except Latin America and Canada. The decline in
U.S. snack sales was due primarily to our product rationalization ini-
tiative and postponed innovation and marketing support during the in-
tegration of this business into the Keebler DSD system. The decline
in international sales was driven by the discontinuation of our
private-label program in Germany and continued cereal category
softness in the United Kingdom and Australia.

On an internal business basis, consolidated operating profit for 2001
grew over 2%. Increased profitability in international businesses off-
set the impact of the internal sales declines discussed above, as well
as the impact of increased marketing investment in the U.S. cereal
business and additionai sales force hiring and training costs in the
United States. In Southeast Asia, operating profit for 2000 was re-
duced by approximately $14 million in aged inventory write-offs and
related expenses as management initiated restructuring actions to
refocus certain markets on sustainable growth.

The inclusion of the Keebler business in consolidated results in-
creased our net sales by approximately 25% and segment operating
profit by approximately 27% versus the prior year. Assuming we had
owned Keebler during the comparable prior-year period, 2001 consol-
idated net sales (excluding foreign currency and integration impacts)

would have been approximately even with the prior year. Similarly,
operating profit (excluding Keebler amortization expense, restructur-
ing charges, foreign currency, and integration impacts} would have in-
creased approximately 4%. Keebler's net sales for full-year 2001 {ex-
cluding Kellogg snacks integrated into the DSD system) decreased
approximately 1% versus the prior year, primarily as a result of our
product rationalization initiative, exit of various non-strategic custom
manufacturing contracts, and postponement of new product introduc-
tions during the integration process.

Margin performance

Margin performance is presented in the following table. All results
for 2001 and 2000 exclude the impact of restructuring charges and
amortization expense that would have been eliminated if SFAS No.
142 had been applied in the prior year. Results for 2001 and 2000
also have been restated for the retroactive application of EITF Issue
No. 01-09 (refer to Note 1 within Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements) related to the reclassification of certain promotional ex-
penditures from selling, general, and administrative expense (SGA) to
net sales and cost of goods sold.

SFAS No. 142 adjusted (b)

Change vs. prior year (pts.)

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001
Gross margin 45.0% 443% 44 2% N 1
SGAY% (a) -26.8% -210% -28.3% 2 -1
(perating margin 18.2% 17.3% 179% 9 -B

(a) Selling. general. and administrative expense as a percentage of net sales.

{b) Results adjusted for the impact of amartization efiminated by SFAS No. 142. Refer to Note 1 within Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information.

The 2002 gross margin improvement was attributable primarily to
higher average pricing, improved mix, operating leverage, and cost
savings related to the Keebler acquisition. Excluding the impact of
premium inserts and other package-related promotional costs
recorded in cost of goods sold, our 2002 gross margin would have
been 110 basis points higher or 46.1% and our 2001 gross margin
would have been 80 basis points higher or 45.1%.

Our 2002 gross margin also was favorably impacted by recognition
of a $16.9 million curtailment gain related to a change in certain re-
tiree health care plans, largely offset by asset impairment losses,
and costs and asset write-offs associated with various ongoing sup-
ply chain efficiency initiatives.

For 2001, the gross margin improvement was attributable to sales of
higher-margin Keebler products, cereal price increases in the United
States and Europe, and efforts to improve our global sales mix. The
grass margin improvement was offset by an increase in SGA%, re-
sulting in an operating margin comparable to the prior year. The
higher SGA% was attributable principally to expenditures for market-
ing programs, U.S. sales force expansion, and improved employee
performance incentives.
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Interest expense

For 2002, gross interest expense, prior to amounts capitalized, in-
creased 11% versus the prior year, due to the extra quarterly period
of interest on Keebler acquisition-related debt. The year-over-year in-
crease was minimized due to continuous pay-down of debt balances
throughout the year and lower short-term market rates of interest.

For 2001, gross interest expense increased significantly versus the
prior year, due primarily to interest expense on debt issued late in the
first quarter to finance the Keebler acquisition. {(Refer to the
“Liguidity and capital resources” section beginning on page 25 for
further information.)

=

Changg vs. prior year
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001

(dollars in milfions)

Reported interest expense 83812 53515 1375
Amounts capitalized 10 28 58
Gross intarest expense $392.2 3344 $1431 10.7%  1477%

We currently expect reported total year 2003 interest expense to be
reduced to approximately $360 million, as we continue to pay down
our debt balances.

Other income (expense), net

Other income {expense}, net includes non-operating items such as in-
terest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, charitable dona-
tions, and gains on asset sales. Other income (expense), net for 2002
consists primarily of a $24.7 million credit related to legal settle-
ments, of which $16.5 million was received in the first quarter with
the remainder received throughout subsequent quarters. Other in-
come (expense}, net for 2000 includes a credit of approximately $12
million related to the 1999 sale of the Lender’s Bagels business.

Income taxes

The effective income tax rate for 2001 of 40% reflected the impact of
the Keebler acquisition on nondeductible goodwill and the level of
U.S. tax on foreign subsidiary earnings. As a result of our adoption of
SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002 (refer to Note 1 within Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements), goodwill amortization expense —
and the resulting impact on the effective income tax rate — has been
eliminated in periods subsequent to adoption. Accordingly, the 2002
effective income tax rate was reduced to 37%, which is consistent
with pre-2000 historical levels. The 2000 effective income tax rate
was unusually low, due to the recognition of $33 miflion in U.S. re-
search and foreign tax credits.

Effective Income tax rate

Change vs. prior :vear (pts.)

2002 2001 2000 20602 2001
Adjusted (a) 370% 40.0% 31.7% -3.0 8.3
As reported 3% 401% 32.3% -3 8

(a) Resuits for 2007 and 2000 exclude the impact of restructuring charges. Results for 2001 also exclude the impact of extraor-
dinary loss from debt extinguishment and acectnting change.

As a result of implementing various foreign and state tax planning
initiatives, we currently expect our 2003 consolidated effective tax
rate to be reduced to approximately 36%.
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Restructuring and other charges

Cost of goods sold for 2002 includes a charge of $5.7 million related
to our planned divestiture of certain private-label operations in
Australia. The charge is comprised principally of an impairment loss
to reduce the carrying value of production assets held for sale to esti-
mated fair value less cost to sell. During December 2002, we sold
these assets for an amount in excess of the previously estimated fair
value, and recorded a credit to cost of goods sold of $2.3 million.

Cost of goods soid for 2002 includes an impairment loss of $5.0 mil-
lion related to our manufacturing facility in China, representing a de-
cline in real estate market value subsequent to an original impair-
ment loss recognized for this property in 1997. We are now in the
process of selling this facility and currently believe the carrying value
reflects fair value less cost to sell.

Net earnings for 2001 include an extraordinary foss of $7.4 million,
net of tax benefit of $4.2 million ($.02 per share), related to the extin-
guishment of $400 million of long-term debt. In April 2002, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 145, a technical corrections pronouncement which,
in part, rescinds SFAS No. 4 “Reparting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt.” Under SFAS No. 145, generally, debt extin-
guishments will no longer be classified as extraordinary items. As a
result of adapting this standard for our 2003 fiscal year, the extraordi-
nary loss for 2001 will be reclassified to conform to the presentation
for 2003 and subsequent years.

On January 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” During 2001, we
recorded a charge to earnings of $1.0 million, net of tax benefit of $.6
million, and a charge ta ather comprehensive income of $14.9 million,
net of tax benefit of $8.6 million, in order to recognize the fair value
of derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities on the balance
sheset.

As discussed in the "Overview" section on page 21, during 2000 and
2001 we undertook significant restructuring actions to align re-
sources with our growth strategy. The incremental costs of these ac-
tions were reported as restructuring charges during these years.

Operating profit for 2001 includes net restructuring charges of $33.3
million {$20.5 million after tax or $.05 per share}, comprised of
charges of $48.3 million and credits of $15.0 million. The charges are
related to preparing Kellogg for the Keebler integration and continued
actions supporting our growth strategy in the United States and
Southeast Asia. Approximately 70% of these charges were com-
prised of asset write-offs, with the remainder consisting of employee
severance and other cash costs. The credits result from adjustments
to various restructuring and asset dispasal reserves associated with
the completion of numerous multi-year initiatives.

Operating profit for 2000 includes restructuring charges of $86.5 mil-
lion ($64.2 million after tax or $.16 per share), consisting of $65.2 mil-
lion for actions in various locations supporting our growth strategy
and $21.3 million for a supply chain efficiency initiative in Europe.




Approximately one-half of the charges were comprised of asset
write-offs with the remainder consisting principally of cash costs for
involuntary employee separation benefits.

Total cash outlays incurred for restructuring programs were approxi-
mately $8 million in 2002, $35 million in 2001, and $88 million in
2000. At the end of 2002, all restructuring programs were complete
and remaining reserves of $1.4 million consisted solely of long-term
contractual obligations for severance. Refer to Nate 3 within Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 "Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal,” which is effective for exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application en-
couraged. We have adopted SFAS No. 146 for our 2003 fiscal year.

This statement is intended to achieve consistency in timing of recog-
nition between exit costs, such as one-time employee separation
benefits and contract termination payments, and all other costs.
Under pre-existing literature, certain costs associated with exit activ-
ities were recognized when management committed to a plan. Under
SFAS No. 146, costs are recognized when a liability has been in-
curred under general concepts. Far instance, under pre-existing litera-
ture, plant closure costs would be accrued at the plan commitment
date. Under SFAS No. 146, these costs would be recognized as clo-
sure activities are performed. These provisions could be expected to
have the general effect of delaying recognition of certain costs re-
lated to restructuring programs. However, we do not currently expect
adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on our 2003 fi-
nancial results.

Keebler acquisition

On March 26, 2001, we acquired Keebler Foods Company in a cash
transaction valued at $4.56 biltion. The acquisition was accounted for
under the purchase method and was financed through a combination
of short-term and long-term debt.

The final purchase price allocation includes $71.3 million of liabilities
related to our plans, as of the acquisition date, to exit certain activi-
ties and operations of the acquired company. Cash outlays related to
these exit plans were approximately $28 million in 2001 and approxi-
mately $24 million in 2002, with the remaining amounts to be spent
principalty during 2003.

Qur exit plans are being announced as individual initiatives are imple-
mented. In August 2002, we announced plans to consolidate certain
functions in Battle Creek, Michigan, primarily research, technology,
and financial services. As a result, approximately 70 positions in
Eimhurst, Illinois, were relocated or eliminated. During November
2002, we commenced the process of consolidating ice cream cone
and pie crust manufacturing operations from several facilities to a
single facility in Chicago, Nlinois. Other major initiatives begun in
2002 included the reconfiguration of Keebler's DSD system in the

southeastern United States to accommodate Kellogg snack product
volume, which has resulted in early termination of leases on approxi-
mately 100 small vans and separation of approximately 85 sales rep-
resentatives and support personne.

Exit plans implemented during 2001 included separation of approxi-
mately 90 Keebler administrative employees and the closing of a bak-
ery in Denver, Colorado, eliminating approximately 440 employee po-
sitions. During June 2001, we communicated plans to transfer
partions of Keebler's Grand Rapids, Michigan, bakery production to
other plants in the United States during the next 12 months. As a re-
sult, approximately 150 employee positions were eliminated, partly
through a voluntary retirement program.

During April 2002, we sold certain assets of Keebler's Bake-Line pri-
vate-label unit, including a bakery in Marietta, Gklahoma, to Atlantic
Baking Group, Inc. for approximately $65 miilion in cash and a $10
million note to be paid at a later date. In January 2003, we sold addi-
tional private-label operations for approximately $14 million in cash.
For both of these transactions, the carrying value of net assets sold,
including allocated goodwill, approximated the net sales proceeds.

Licuriciity and capital resources

For 2002, net cash provided by operating activities was $999.9 mil-
lion, compared to $1.13 billion in the prior-year period. Operating
cash flow for 2002 declined slightly versus the prior year, due to a
significant year-over-year increase in employee benefit plan contribu-
tions. Excluding the after-tax impact of December 2002 voluntary con-
tributions of approximately $254 million, our 2002 operating cash
flow would have exceeded the 2001 level by approximately $121 mil-
lion, buoyed by operating profit growth and strong “core working cap-
ital” {trade recaivables and inventory, less trade payables) manage-
ment. Core warking capital as a percentage of sales continued to
improve versus the prior year. For 2002, average core working capital
represented 8.8% of net sales, versus 9.9% for 2001.

Expenditures during 2002 for property additions were $253.5 million,
which represented 3.1% of current-year net sales compared with
3.7% in 2001. For 2003, expenditures for property additions are cur-
rently expected to remain at approximately 3% of net sales.

Our measure of full-year 2002 cash flow (defined as net cash pro-
vided by operating activities reduced by expenditures for property ad-
ditions) was $746.4 million and, excluding the after-tax impact of
aforementioned year-end voluntary benefit plan contributions, would
have heen approximately one billion dollars. As a result of this
stronger-than-expected cash flow, in December 2002, we made vol-
untary contributions to several of our major U.S. and UK. pension
and health care plans, totaling $370 million on a pretax basis.
Despite these contributions, several of our pension plans experienced
shortfalls in market values of trust assets versus the year-end 2002
accounting measurement of accumulated obligation. As a result of this
condition, we were required to record on our year-end 2002 balance
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sheet a reduction in equity of approximately $306 miilion. This adjust-
ment had no effect on our earnings, nor our ability to meet current
debt covenants and maintain current debt ratings, and is not ex-
pected to affect our liquidity or capital resources.

Primarily to offset dilution from outstanding employee stock options,
our Board of Directors authorized management to repurchase up to
$150 million of Kellogg common stock during 2002. Under this author-
ization, we paid $101 million during 2002 to repurchase approxi-
mately 3.1 million shares. The Board has authorized management to
repurchase up to $250 million of stock during 2003 to offset or par-
tially offset issuances under employee benefit programs.

Subseguent to the Keebler acquisition in March 2001, we have repaid
over one hiltion dollars of debt incurred for this purpose, which re-
duced our commercial paper program to approximately 2% of our to-
tal debt balance by mid-2002. During September 2002, we issued
$400 million of U.S. commercial paper and redeemed $300.7 million
of fixed rate Notes due April 2003. As of December 28, 2002, we had
entered into forward interest rate contracts to fix the Treasury com-
ponent of the coupon rate on $200 million notional amount of fong-
term debt to be issued in 2003, as a replacement for other maturing
debt. At year-end 2002, these contracts were unfavorable to market
by approximately 25 basis points.

We believe that we will be able to meet our interest and principal re-
payment obligations and maintain our debt covenants for the foresee-
able future, while still meeting our operational needs through our
strong cash flow, our program of issuing commercial paper, and main-
taining credit facilities on a global basis. Qur significant long-term
debt issues do not contain acceleration of maturity clauses that are
dependent on credit ratings. A change in our Company's credit rat-
ings could limit its access to the U.S. commercial paper market
and/or increase the cost of refinancing long-term debt in the future.
However, even under these circumstances, we would continue to
have access to our credit facilities, which are in amounts sufficient to
cover the outstanding commercial paper balance and debt principal
repayments through 2003.

Off-balance sheet arrangements
andg ather obligations

Off-balance sheet arrangements

Our off-balance sheet arrangements are generally limited to future
payments under noncancelable operating leases totaling approxi-
mately $302 million at year-end 2002, residual value guarantees and
secondary liabilities an operating leases of approximately $14 mil-
lion, and third party loan guarantees as discussed in the following
paragraph.

Our Keebler subsidiary is guarantor on loans to independent contrac-
tors for the purchase of DSD route franchises. At year-end 2002,
there were total loans outstanding of $14.1 million to 526 fran-
chisees. Related to this arrangement, our Company has established a
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five-year renewable loan facility and servicing arrangement up to
$15.0 million with a financial institution. We have the right to revoke
and resel! the route franchises in the event of default or any other
breach of contract by franchisees. Revocations have been infrequent.
Our maximum potential future payments under these guarantees are
limited to the outstanding loan principal balance plus unpaid interest.
At December 28, 2002, we had not recorded any liability related to
this arrangement.

During December 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45
“Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Reguirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others.” This interpretation clarifies the requirement for recognition
of a liability by a guarantor at the inception of the guarantee, based
on the fair value of the non-contingent obligation to perform. This in-
terpretation must be applied prospectively to guarantees entered into
or modified after December 31, 2002. Accordingly, we will recognize
the fair value of guarantees associated with new loans to OSD route
franchisees issued beginning in 2003. These amounts are expected to
be insignificant.

During January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Under previous practice,
entities were included in consolidated financial statements based on
controiling voting interests. Under this interpretation, previously un-
consolidated entities (often referred to as “special purpose entities”)
will be included in the consclidated financial statements of the “pri-
mary beneficiary” as a result of non-voting financial interests which
are established through contractual or other means. For variable in-
terest entities created after January 31, 2003, this interpretation is
effective immediately. For any pre-existing variable interest entities,
this interpretation would be effective beginning with our Company's
fiscal 2003 third quarter. We continue to examine this new literature,
but do not currently believe it will be applicable to any existing finan-
cial arrangement of our Company.

Contractual obligations

The following table summarizes future estimated cash payments to
be made under existing long-term contractual obligations. Further in-
formation on debt obligations is contained in Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Further information on lease obli-
gations is contained in Note 6.

ﬁtramuat obligations Payments due by period

2008 and
(miflions) Total 2003 2004-2005 2006-2007 beyand
Long-term debt () $8.869.5 $1,0974 $1.4199 $14716.1 S4.876.1
Capital leases 0 15 33 2.2 -
Operating leases 3018 820 543 620 533
Dther long-term (b} i 503 1014 100 -
Total $9,3438 $1.261.2 $1,6189 $15503 S4,§g

{8) Includes interest payments on significant fixed sate debt issuances outstanding at December 28, 2002,

(b) Cansists principally of minimum annual payments under long-term co-marketing agreements. Certain of these agreemsnis
also define minimum activity levels of an unspecified dollar amout for packaging inngvation, advertising, and promotion, for
which we have estimated and included the fixed cost component in the amaunts abave.




Contingent obligations

Our Company has provided various representations, warranties, and
other standard indemnifications in agreements to sell business as-
sets or lease facilities over the past several years. Additionally, our
Company is involved in various claims, including environmental and
employment matters, arising in the ordinary course of business. We
do not believe that any of these commitments or contingencies repre-
sents material adverse expasures to our Company's financial position
or future results.

Significant accounting polficies

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. Qur critical accounting poli-
cies, which require significant judgments and estimates, are gener-
ally limited to thase governing the amount and timing of recognition
of consumer promotional expenditures and the assessment of the
carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

Our promotional activities are conducted either through the retail
trade or directly with consumers and involve in-store displays; fea-
ture price discounts on our products; consumer coupons, contests,
and loyalty programs; and similar activities. The costs of these activi-
ties are generally recognized at the time the refated revenue is
recorded, which normally precedes the actual cash expenditure. The
recognition of these costs therefore requires management judgment
regarding the volume of promotional offers that will be redeemed by
either the retail trade or cansumer. These estimates are made using
various techniques including historical data on perfarmance of similar
promotional programs. Differences between estimated expense and
actual redemptions are normally insignificant and recognized as a
change in management estimate in a subsequent period. However, as
our Company's total promotional expenditures represented nearly
30% of 2002 net sales, the likelihood exists of materially different re-
ported results if different assumptions or conditions were to prevail.

Beginning in 2002, we follow SFAS No. 142 in evaluating impairment
of goodwill and other intangible assets. Under this standard, goodwill
impairment testing first requires a comparison between the carrying
value and fair value of a reporting unit with associated goodwill.
Carrying value is based on the assets and liabilities associated with
the operations of that reporting unit, which often requires allocation
of shared ar corporate items among reporting units. The fair value of
a reporting unit is based primarily on our assessment of profitability
multiples likely to be achieved in a theoretical sale transaction.
Similarly, impairment testing of other intangible assets requires a
comparison of carrying value to fair value of that particular asset. Fair
values of non-goodwill intangible assets are based primarily on pro-
jections of future cash flows to be generated from that asset. For in-
stance, cash flows related to a particular trademark would be based
on a projected royalty stream attributable to branded product sales.
These estimates are made using various inputs including historical
data, current and anticipated market conditions, management plans,
and market comparables. At December 28, 2002, intangible assets,

net, were $5.1 billion, consisting primarily of goodwill, trademarks,
and DSD delivery system associated with the Keebler acquisition.
While we currently believe that the fair value of all of our intangibles
exceeds carrying value, materially different assumptions regarding
future performance of our snacks business could result in significant
impairment losses.

Futusre outioolk

As we begin 2003, our Company faces several important challenges,
including:

& higher employee benefits expense;

O significant increases in the prices of certain grains, cocoa, and
packaging;

& increased cost and reduced availability of certain types of
insurance such as product recall and tampering, and earthquake;

economic volatility in Latin America; and

0 a fundamental change in strategy for our snacks business as
discussed further below.

Despite these challenges, our Company should be able to generate
high single-digit earnings per share growth for 2003, excluding the
impact of favorable legal settlements in the first quarter of 2002. We
believe these cost increases and risks can be largely offset with pric-
ing and mix improvements, a series of supply chain productivity ini-
tiatives, and the momentum in operating performance and cash flow
expansion we established in 2002.

Regarding our snacks business, we are in the process of restructuring
this business for the next phase of its life cycle. This restructuring en-
tails a change from an “acquire-and-integrate strategy” followed suc-
cessfully by Keebler prior to our acquisition of that company, to a
strategy of sustainable, organic growth. Although we believe we are
executing well, the success of this new strategy depends on our abil-
ity to enhance brand-building capabilities both in consumer marketing
and innovation, requiring considerable changes in processes and per-
sonnel. As we accelerate this transition during 2003, we plan to
make significant investments in this business.

Despite significant benefit plan contributions in 2002, we expect to
experience double-digit increases in employee pension and health
care expense during 2003, attributable principally to rapidly rising
U.S. health care costs, the impact of changes in several actuarial as-
sumptions versus 2002, and amortization of experience losses.

Based on recent and projected market conditions, we have decided to
reduce our long-term rate of return on major plan assets from 10.5%
t0 9.3% for 2003. To review our long-term rate of return on an annual
basis, we wark with third party financial consultants to model expected
returns over a 20-year investment horizon with respect to the invest-
ment mix of our major plans, which currently consist of approximately
70% equities, 15% investment grade bonds, and 15% high-yielding
bonds and other investments. The return assumptions used reflect a
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combination of rigorous historica! performance analysis and forward-
locking views of the financial markets as indicated by yields on long-
term bonds and price-earnings ratios of the major stock market in-
dices. With respect to our investment mix, the simulations of this
mode! during 2002 resulted in a mean return of 8.5% and a 75th per-
centile return of 10.4%. This model does not incorporate a premium
for active management of trust investments which, according to our
historical analysis, is expected to add at least 100 basis points to the
long-term performance of our plan assets versus the mean return of
the model. Taking into account this premium, we currently believe
that 9.3% is an appropriate reflection of the expected long-term per-
formance of our trust investments. Any future variance between the
assumed and actual rates of return on our plan assets is currently ex-
pected to have an insignificant impact on our earnings for any partic-
ular year, due to our election to determine fair value of plan assets
based on calculated value aver a five-year period and the process of
amortizing experience gains and losses using a declining-balance
method over the average remaining service period of active employ-
ees. For instance, a 100 basis point shortfall in actual versus as-
sumed perfarmance of all of our plan assets in year one would result
in an arising experience loss of approximately $20 million. The unfa-
vorable impact on earnings in year two would be less than $2 million.
Approximately 80% of this experience loss would be recovered
through earnings at the end of year 20.

In addition to reducing the asset return rate, we also addressed the
health care cost trend rates and discount rates applicable to the year-
end 2002 plan valuations. While our initial trend rate for 2003 of 8%
is consistent with our recent experience, we have decided to increase
our ultimate assumed cost trend rate for U.S. retiree health care bene-
fits from 4.5% to 5%, based on current economic views on long-term
health care cost inflation. Lastly, based on prevailing rates on high
quality debt securities, we reduced the discount rate used to measure
our year-end 2002 plan obligations by at least 25 basis points in most
of our major jurisdictions, which include the United States, United
Kingdom, and Canada. Our global weighted average discount rate at
year-end 2002 was 6.6% versus 7% at year-end 2001.

Due primarily to stock market declines over the past several years, we
have experienced shortfalls in actual versus expected performance of
trust investments. Combined with the unfavorable impact of falling in-
terest rates on measurement of our benefit obligations during the
same time period, we have accumulated significant experience losses,
which must be amortized as a component of benefits expense in fu-
ture years. For 2003, we currently expect incremental amortization of
approximately $20 million. Assuming actual future experience is con-
sistent with our current assumptions, incremental amortization of ac-
cumulated experience losses during each of the next several years
would be approximately equivalent to the 2003 amount.

Forward-locking statemenis
Qur Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and other parts of this
Annual Report contain “forward-looking statements” with projections
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concerning, among other things, our strategy and plans; growth, mar-
gins, and profitability; products and promotions; exit plans and costs
related to the Keebler acquisition; the impact of accounting changes;
our ability to meet interest and debt principal repayment obligations;
future common stock repurchases; effective income tax rate; cash
flow; working capital; property addition expenditures; interest ex-
pense, commodity prices, health care and pension casts; and realiz-
ability of the carrying value of intangibles and other assets. Forward-
looking statements include predictions of future results or activities
and may contain the words “expect,” “believe,” "will,” “will deliver,”
“anticipate,” "project,” "should,” or wards or phrases of similar mean-
ing. Our actual results or activities may differ materially from these
predictions. In particular, future results or activities could be affected
by factors refated to the Keebler acquisition, including integration
prablems, failures to achieve savings, unanticipated liabilities, and the
substantial amount of debt incurred to finance the acquisition, which
could, among other things, hinder our ability to adjust rapidly to
changing market conditions,-make us more vulnerable in the event of
a downturn, and place us at a competitive disadvantage relative to
less-leveraged competitors. In addition, our future results could be af-
fected by a variety of other factors, including:

won " on

“on

competitive conditions in our markets;
marketing spending levels and pricing actions of competitors;

B the impact of competitive conditions, marketing spending, and/or
incremental pricing actions on actual volumes and product mix;

effectiveness of advertising and marketing spending or programs;

2}

the success of innovations and new product introductions;

the availability of and interest rates on short-term financing;

il

actual market performance of benefit plan trust investments;

it

the levels of spending on systems initiatives, properties, business
opportunities, integration of acquired businesses, and other gen-
eral and administrative costs;

commodity prices and labor costs;

changes in consumer behavior and preferences;

changes in U.S. or foreign requlations affecting the food industry;

the success of productivity improvements;

K]

the success of business transitions;

U.S. and foreign economic conditions, including currency conver-
sion controls and rate fluctuations;

]

legal factors; and,

|

business disruption ar other losses from terrorist acts or political
unrest, or responses to them.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they were
made, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update them.




Kellogg Company and Subsidiaries

Selected Financial Dafa

(in millions, except per share data and number of employees)

2002 2001 2000 1949 1998

Operating trends
Net sales (d) $ 8,304.1 S 79484 36,086.7 61565 S$6.1105
Gross profit as a % of net sales (d) 45.0% 44.2% 441% 45 % 45.3%
Depreciation 3468 3310 256 238 2618
Amaortization 15 1076 150 144 18.3
Advertising expense 588.7 5192 604.2 674.1 695.3
Research and development expanse 106.4 1102 1184 1041 1219
Qperating profit (a) (e) 1,508.1 11678 9898 826.8 895.1
Operating profit as a % of net sales 18.2% 15.5% 16.3% 13.9% 145%
Interest expanse 3512 3518 1375 1168 1185
Eamnings before exiraordinary loss and

cumulative effect of accounting change (a) (b) (8) 7209 4820 5877 3383 5026
Average shares outstanding:

Basic 408.4 405.1 4068 405.2 4078

Diluted 411.5 4072 4058 40,7 4085
Eamings per share hefore extraordinary loss and

cumulative effect of accounting change (a) (b) (8):

Basic 177 1.19 145 83 128

Diluted 175 118 145 83 128
Cash flow trends
Net cash provided from oparating activities S 9999 $ 11320 S 8609 S 7852 S 787
Capital expenditures 2535 2765 2309 266.2 3138
Net cash provided from operating activities

reduced by capital expenditures 746.4 8505 650.0 5280 3458
Net cash used in investing activities (184.8) (4,1438) (3793) (244.2) (398.0)
Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities (944.9) 30402 (4418) (5278) (398.3)
Interest coverage ratio () 48 435 94 79 99
Capitai structure {rends
Total assets $10,219.3 §10.368.5 $4.886.0 §4.808.7 360515
Property, net 2,840.2 29528 20263 26403 20888
Short-term debt 1,1973 5956 1,386.3 b215 6215
Long-term debt 4,519.4 56180 709.2 16128 16145
Shareholders™ equity 895.1 871.5 8975 8132 5888
Share price trends
Stock price range S 28-37 S 25-34 S 21-32 S 30-42 S 30-50
(ash dividends per common share 1.010 1.010 935 960 920
ﬂumber of employses 25,678 26424 15,198 15,001 14‘498_

(a) Operating prafit for 2001 includes restructiring charges, cet of credits, of $333 (5205 atrer tax or $05 per share). Operating prafit far 2000 includes restrusturing charges of $86.5 (S64.2 after tax or S.18 per share), Oparating profit for 1999 includes rastruc-
turing charges of $244.6 ($156.4 after tax or S.40 per share). Farnings before extraordinary loss and accounting changs for 1989 include disposition-related charges of S188.5 ($111.5 after tax or $.27 per share). Operating profit for 1398 includes restructuring
charges of $70.5 ($46.3 after tax or $.12 per share). Refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 24 and Note 3 within Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for further explanation ef charges for years 2000-2001.

(b) Eamings before extraordinary loss and cumulative effest of accounting change for 2001 exclude the effect of a charge of $74 after tax (5.02 per share) for extinguishment of debt and a charge of $1.0 after tax to adopt SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities™

(c) Interest coverage ratio is calculated based on sarnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation. and amortization, divided by interest expense.
(d) 1898-2001 net sales restated for the retroactive application of EITF No. 01-09. Refer to Note 1 within Notes to Cansalidated Financial Statements for further information,
(e) Results for 2001 include $103.5 ($85.0 after tax or .21 per share) of amortization which has been eliminated by SFAS No. 142 on a pro forma basis. Amartization in pre-2001 years was insignificant. Refer to Note 1 for further informatian,
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Keliogg Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Earnings

—=

(millions, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Net sales $8,304.1 $75484 $6,086.7
Cost of goods sold 4589.0 414 34017
Selling, gensral, and administrative expense 2,2270 21358 16087
Restructuring charges - 333 865
Operating prafit $1,508.1 $1,1679 S 9898
Interest expense 381.2 3515 1375
Other income (gxpense), net 274 {12.3) 154
Earnings before income faxes, extrasrdinary loss,

and cumulative effect of accounting change $1,144.3 S 8041 S 8677
income taxes 423.4 3221 2800
Earnings before extraordinary loss and

cumulative effect of accounting change $ 7208 S 48200 S bary
Extraordinary loss (net of tax) - (14) -
Cumulative effect of accounting changs (et of tax) - {10) -
Mat earnings $ 7208 S 4738 S 5877
Per share amoumnts:
Eamnings befare extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change:

Basic $ 177 $ 119 $ 145

Diluted 1.75 118 145
Net earnings:

Basic 177 107 145
JJJuted 175 1.16 145

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Capital in other Total Total
Comman stock excess of Retained Treasury stock comprehensive  shareholders comprehensive

(millions) shares amount par value garnings shares amount income gquity income
Balance, January 1, 2000 4155 S1038 $1045 81,3172 100 ($3809) (5331.4) $ 8132
Net sarnings 877 8817 S berY
Dividends (4039) (4039)
Dther comprehensive income (1039) (1039) (1039)
Stock options exercised and other (25) (2 63 44
Balance, Decsmber 31, 2000 415.5 $1038 $102.0 $1,501.0 98 ($ 3740) (§435.3) S 8975 $4838
Net sarnings 4736 4738 4736
Dividends (409.8) (409.8)
Other comprehensive income (116.3) (116.1) (116.1)
Stock options exarcised and other {105} {n ) 369 263
Balance, Decerber 31, 2001 4155 $103.8 §918 §1.964.7 88 (§ 3371) {$551.4) SE71S S 3675
Common stock repurchases 3.1 (101.0) (101.0)
Net earnings 7209 7209 7209
Dividends {(412.6) {412.85)
Qther comprehensive incom (302.0) (302.0) (302.0)
Stack options exercised and other (416) {43 1599 1183
Balance, December 28, 2082 415.5 $103.8 $49.9 $1,873.0 78 (8278.2)  ($853.4) $895.1 $418.8

—rt

Refer to Notes to Consalidated Financlal Statements.
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Kellogg Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(millions, except share data) 2002 0 T
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 1008 S 28
Accounts recsivable, net 7410 762.3
nventories 603.2 b74.5
{ther current assets 3188 3334
Totai current assels $ 1,763.4 S 19020
Property, net 2,840.2 28528
Other assets 5,815.7 05138
Total assefs $10,218.3 S103686
Current fiabities )
{urrent maturities of long-term debt S 7764 S 823
Notes payable 426.9 5133
Accounts payable 618.0 977y
Cther current liabilities 1,498.5 71,0345
Total current liabilities $ 30148 $ 22018
Long-term debt 45194 56190
Other liabilities 1,788.9 1,670.8

Sharehelders’ aguity
{ommon stock, $.26 par valug, 1,000,000,000 shares authorized

Issued: 415,451,198 shases in 2002 and 2001 1838 1038
Capital in excess of par value 4939 915
Retained earnings 1,873.0 1.564.7
Treasury stock at cost:

7598923 shares in 2002 and 8,840,028 shares in 2001 (278.2} (3371)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (853.4) (h514)

Total shareholders’ equily $ 8951 S 815
__Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $16,218.3 $103686

Refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Kellogg Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(millions) 2002 2001 2000
Dperating activities
et sarnings $7208 S 4738 See77
Adjustments o reconcile net earnings to operating cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 348.4 4386 2906
Deferred income taxes 1112 nh (14)
Restructuring chargss, net of cash paid - 31.2 625
{ther T (66.0) (12)
Pension and other postretirament bensfit contributions {448.8) (76.3) (84.3)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 265.3 2084 20
Het cash provided from operating activities $999.9 $11320 8809
Investing activities
Additions to properties {$253.,5) (S 278.5) (52309
Acquisitions of businesses (2.2} (3.858.0) (1372)
Dispositions of businesses 80.9 - -
Property dispasals 8.0 10.1 48
(ther - (154 (18.0)
Net cash vsed in investing activities ($188.8) (541438 (8379.3)
Financing activilies
Net increase (reduction) of nates payable, with maturities less than or equal to 90 days (5225.2) (S 1540) $290.5
Issuances of notes payable, with maturities greater than 90 days 354.8 5498 3h
Reductions of notes payable, with maturities greater than 90 days (221.1) (365.6) (3319
lssuances of long-term deht - 50014 -
Reductions of long-term debt {433.3) {1,6084) (48)
Net issuances of common stock 100.3 264 45
Common stogk repurchases {101.3) - -
Cash dividends (412.8) {408.8) (4039)
Other - 5 -
Net cash provided from {used in} financing activities ($344.4) 530402 (5441 8)
Effact of exchange rate changes on cash 2.1 (a0 (60)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ($131.2) S 24 $ 538
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2318 2044 1506
___Gash and cash equivalents at end of year $100.3 $ 2318 S2044

Refer ta Notes to Censolicated Financial Statements.
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Kellogg Company and Subsidiarics

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Accouniing policies
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Kellogg Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany
balances and transactions are eliminated.

Certain amounts in the prior-year financial statements have been re-
classified to conform to the current-year presentation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Highly liquid temporary investments with original maturities of less
than three months are considered to be cash equivalents. The carry-
ing amount approximates fair value.

inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost {principally average) or
market.

Property and other long-lived assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated over estimated
useful lives using straight-line methods for financial reporting and ac-
celerated methods for tax reporting. Cost includes an amount of in-
terest associated with significant capital projects.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{SFAS) No. 144 "Accounting for impairment or Disposal of Long-lived
Assets” on January 1, 2002. This standard is generally effective for
the Company on a prospective basis. SFAS No. 144 clarifies and re-
vises existing guidance on accounting for impairment of plant, prop-
erty, and equipment, amortized intangibles, and other long-lived as-
sets not specifically addressed in other accounting literature.
Significant changes include 1} establishing criteria beyond those pre-
viously specified in existing literature for determining when a long-
lived asset is held for sale, and 2} requiring that the depreciable life
of a long-lived asset to be abandoned is revised. SFAS No. 144 also
broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include a
component of an entity (rather than only a segment of a business).

Goodwill and ofther intangibie assels

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” on January 1, 2002. This standard provides accounting and
disclosure guidance for acquired intangibles. Under this standard,
goodwill and “indefinite-lived” intangibles are no longer amortized,
but are tested at least annually for impairment. Goodwill impairment
testing first requires a comparison between the carrying value and
fair value of a reporting unit, including goodwill allocated to it. If car-
rying value exceeds fair value, goodwill is considered impaired. The

amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between
carrying value and implied fair value of goodwill, which is determined
in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a busi-
ness combination. Impairment testing for non-amortized intangibles
requires a comparison between the fair value and carrying value of
the intangible asset. If carrying value exceeds fair value, the intangi-
ble is considered impaired and is reduced to fair value. The Company
uses various market valuation techniques to determine fair value of
goodwill and other intangible assets, primarily discounted cash flow
models and profitability-based multiples. Transitional impairment
tests of goodwill and non-amortized intangibles were required to be
performed upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, with any recognized im-
pairment loss reported as the cumulative effect of an accounting
change in the first period of adoption. The Company was not required
to recognize any impairment losses under these transitional tests.

SFAS No. 142 also provides separability criteria for recognizing intangi-
ble assets apart from goodwill. Under these provisions, assembled
workforce is no longer considered a separate intangible. Accordingly,
effective January 1, 2002, the Company reclassified approximately $46
miltion from other intangibles to goodwill. Refer to Note 15 for further
information on the Company's goodwill and other intangible assets.

For periods prior to 2002, intangible assets were amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated periods benefited, generally 40
years for goodwill and periods ranging from 5 to 40 years for other in-
tangible assets. The realizability of goodwill and other intangibles
was evaluated periodically when events or circumstances indicated a
possible inahility to recaver the carrying amount. Evaluation was
based on undiscounted cash flow projections over the remaining life
of the asset. An excess of carrying value over cash flows resulted in
recognition of an impairment loss. The amount of the loss was based
on the difference between carrying value and fair value of the asset,
as measured by market comparables or discounted cash flows in the
absence of market data.

Revenue recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes sales upon delivery of its products to
customers net of applicable provisions for discounts, returns, and
altowances.

Beginning January 1, 2002, the Company has applied the consensus
reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) of the FASB in Issue
No. 01-09 "Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor's Products.” Under this consen-
sus, generally, cash consideration is classified as a reduction of rev-
enue, unless specific criteria are met regarding goods or services that
the vendor may receive in return for this consideration. Non-cash
consideration is classified as a cost of sales.
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As a result of applying this consensus, the Company has reclassified
promotional payments to its customers and the cost of consumer
coupons and other cash redemption offers from selling, general, and
administrative expense (SGA) to net sales. The Company has reclas-
sified the cost of promotional package inserts and other non-cash
consideration from SGA to cost of goods sold. Prior-period financial
statements have been reclassified to comply with this guidance.

Advertising

The costs of advertising are generally expensed as incurred and are
classified within SGA.

Stock compensation

The Company follows Accounting Principles Board Opinion {APB) No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” in accounting for its em-
ployee stock options and other stock-based compensation. Under APB
No. 25, because the exercise price of the Company's employee stock op-
tions eguals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the
grant, no compensation expense is recognized. As permitted, the
Company has elected to adopt the disclosure provisions only of SFAS
No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and SFAS No. 148
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure.” Refer to Note 8 for further information.

Derivatives and hedging transactions

The Company adopted SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” on January 1, 2001. This state-
ment requires all derivative instruments to be recorded on the balance
sheet at fair value and establishes criteria for designation and effec-
tiveness of hedging relationships. Upon adoption, the Company re-
ported a charge to eamnings of $1.0 million (net of tax benefit of $.6
million} and a charge to other comprehensive income of $14.9 million
{net of tax benefit of $8.6 million) in order to recognize the fair value
of derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities on the balance
sheet. The charge to earnings relates to the component of the deriva-
tive instruments” net loss that has been excluded from the assessment
of hedge effectiveness. Refer to Note 12 for further information.

For periods prior to 2001, the Company accounted for derivatives and
hedging transactions in a manner similar to the provisions of SFAS
No. 133, except that 1) unrealized gains and losses related to hedges
of forecasted transactions were deferred as assets or liabilities
rather than incfuded in other comprehensive income, and 2) the fair
values of certain financial derivatives such as interest rate swaps
were carried off-balance sheet.

Recently issued pronouncements

Accounting for exit costs

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal,” with respect to exit or disposal ac-
tivities initiated after December 31, 2002. This statement is intended o
achieve consistency in timing of recognition between exit costs, such
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as one-time employee separation benefits and contract termination
payments, and all other costs. Under pre-existing literature, certain
costs associated with exit activities were recognized when manage-
ment committed to a pian. Under SFAS No. 146, costs are recognized
when a liability has been incurred under general concepts. For in-
stance, under pre-existing literature, plant closure costs would be ac-
crued at the plan commitment date. Under SFAS No. 146, these costs
would be recognized as closure activities are performed. These provi-
sions cauld be expected to have the general effect of delaying recogni-
tion of certain costs related to restructuring programs. However, man-
agement does not currently expect adoption of this standard to have a
significant impact on the Company’s 2003 financial results.

Guarantees

With respect to guarantees entered into or modified after December 31,
2002, the Company has applied guidance contained in FASB
[nterpretation No. 45 "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others.” This interpretation clarifies the requirement for
recognition of a liability by a guarantor at the inception of the guaran-
tee, based on the fair value of the non-contingent obligation to perform.
Management does nat currently expect application of this guidance to
have a significant impact on the Company’s 2003 financial results.

Extinguishment of debt

Net earnings for 2001 include an extraordinary loss of $7.4 million,
net of tax benefit of $4.2 million {$.02 per share), related to the extin-
guishment of $400 million of long-term debt. Effective with its 2003
fiscal year, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145, a technical correc-
tions pronouncement which, in part, rescinds SFAS No. 4 “Reporting
Gains and Losses fram Extinguishment of Debt.” Under SFAS No.
145, generally, debt extinguishments will no longer be classified as
extraordinary items. Accordingly, the extraordinary loss for 2001 will
be reclassified to conform to the presentation for 2003 and subse-
quent years.

Variable interest entities

During January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46
“Consalidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Under previous practice,
entities were included in consolidated financial statements based on
controlling voting interests. Under this interpretation, previously un-
consolidated entities (often referred to as "special purpose entities”)
will be included in the consolidated financial statements of the “pri-
mary beneficiary” as a result of non-vating financial interests which
are established through contractual or other means. For variable in-
terest entities created after January 31, 2003, this interpretation is
effective immediately. For any pre-existing variable interest entities,
this interpretation would be effective beginning with the Company’s
fiscal 2003 third quarter. Management continues tc examine this new
literature, but does not currently believe it will be applicable to any
existing financial arrangement of the Company.




Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of cantingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of rev-
enues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Note 2 Acauisiions and disposiions
Keebler acquisition

On March 26, 2001, the Company acquired Keebler Foods Company in
a cash transaction valued at $4.56 billion. The acquisition was ac-
counted for under the purchase method and was financed through a
combination of short-term and long-term debt.

The components of intangible assets included in the final allocation
of purchase price are presented in the following table. During 2001,
these intangibles were amortized based on an estimated useful life
of 40 years. As a result of the Company's adoption of SFAS No. 142
on January 1, 2002 {refer to Note 1), these intangibles are no longer
amortized after 2001, but are subject to annual impairment reviews.

(millions)

Trademarks and tradenames $13100

Direct stare door (DSD) defivery system 5900

Goodwill 29385
$4.8385

The final purchase price allocation includes $71.3 million of liabilities
related to management’s plans, as of the acquisition date, to exit cer-
tain activities and operations of the acquired company, as presented
in the table below. Cash outlays related to these exit plans were ap-
proximately $28 million in 2001 and approximately $24 million in
2002, with the remaining amounts to be spent principally during 2003.

Lease & other

Employes Employee contract  Facility closure

{millions) severance benefits  relogation termination costs Total
Total reserve at acquisition date:

Drigingl estimate $693 $86 $123 $104 906

Purchase accounting adjustments ~ (10.3) in (9 (14) (19.3)

Adjusted $49.0 §16 $118 $80 K]
Amounts utilized during 2001 (239) (8) (4) 29 (26.0)
Amaunts utilized during 2002 (179 N (18) 42) (24.0)
Remaining reserve
at December 28, 2002 $ 72 $.6 $ 96 $19 $19.3

Exit plans are being announced as individual initiatives are imple-
mented. In August 2002, management announced plans to consoli-
date certain functions in Battle Creek, Michigan, primarily research,
technology, and financial services. As a result, approximately 70 posi-
tions in Elmhurst, Hlinois, were relocated or eliminated. During
November 2002, the Company commenced the process of consolidat-
ing ice cream cone and pie crust manufacturing operations from sev-
eral facilities to a single facility in Chicago, llinois. Gther major ini-
tiatives begun in 2002 included the reconfiguration of Keebler's DSD

system in the southeastern United States to accommodate Kellogg
snack product volume, which has resulted in early termination of
leases on approximately 100 small vans and separation of apgroxi-
mately 85 sales representatives and support personnel.

Exit plans implemented during 2001 included separation of approxi-
mately 90 Keebler administrative employees and the closing of a bak-
ery in Denver, Colorado, eliminating approximately 440 employee po-
sitions. During June 2007, the Company communicated plans to
transfer portions of Keebler's Grand Rapids, Michigan, bakery produc-
tion to other plants in the United States during the next 12 months.
As a result, approximately 150 employee positions were eliminated,
partly through a voluntary retirement program.

During April 2002, the Company sold certain assets of Keebler’s
Bake-Line private-label unit, including a bakery in Marietta,
Oklahoma, to Atlantic Baking Group, Inc. for approximately $85 mil-
lion in cash and a $10 million note to be paid at a later date. In
January 2003, the Company sold additional private-iabel operations
for approximately $14 million in cash. For both of these transactions,
the carrying value of net assets sold, including allocated goodwill,
approximated the net sales proceeds.

The following table includes the unaudited pro forma combined re-
sults as if Kellogg Company had acquired Keebler Foods Company as
of the beginning of either 2001 or 2000, instead of March 26, 2001
Net sales have been restated for the retroactive application of EITF
Issue No. 01-09 {refer to Note 1) effective January 1, 2002.

(millions, except per share dala) 2001 2000

Net sales $ 80438 $ 82101
Earnings before extraordinary loss

and cumulative effect of accounting change $ 4380 S 6§18
Nat earnings S 4288 S 5178
Nat earnings per shara (bastc and diluted) S 1086 $ 128

The pro forma results include amortization of the intangibles pre-
sented above and interest expense on debt assumed issued to finance
the purchase. The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of
what actually would have occurred if the acquisition had been com-
pleted as of the beginning of each of the fiscal periods presented, nor
are they necessarily indicative of future consolidated results.

Other acquisitions

During 2000, the Company paid cash for several business acquisitions.
In January, the Company purchased certain assets and liabilities of
the Mondo Baking Company Division of Southeastern Mills, Inc., a
convenience foods manufacturing operation, for approximately $93
million, including related acquisition costs. In July, the Company pur-
chased certain assets and liabilities of The Healthy Snack Peaple busi-
ness, an Australian convenience foods operation, for approximately
$12 million, including related acquisition costs. In June, the Company
acquired the outstanding stock of Kashi Company, a U.S. natural foods
company. In May 2002, the Company paid additional contingent pur-
chase price of $2 million, bringing the total purchase price, including
related acquisition costs, to approximately $35 million.
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Note 2 Restruclturing and othrer
charges

Cost of goods sold for 2002 includes an impairment loss of $5.0 mil-
lion related to the Company’s manufacturing facility in China, repre-
senting a decline in real estate market value subsequent to an origi-
nal impairment loss recognized for this property in 1997.
Management is now in the process of selling this facility and cur-
rently believes the carrying value reflects fair value less cost to sell.

During the past several years, management has commenced major pro-
ductivity and operational streamlining initiatives in an effort to opti-
mize the Company’s cost structure and align resources with the
Company's growth strategy. The incremental costs of these programs
have been reported during these years as restructuring charges.
Specifically, during 2000, management adopted key operating princi-
ples that emphasize a stricter prioritization for resource allocation to
the United States and the Company’s other core markets. In conjunc-
tion with this strategy, the Company was reorganized from four operat-
ing areas into two divisions — U.S. and International. As a result, man-
agement initiated restructuring actions around the world to suppart
this strategy and organization, including staff reductions in its global
supply chain and inngvation arganization, rationalization of interna-
tional convenience foods capacity, and restructuring of various non-
core markets to improve return on investment. These initiatives re-
sulted in restructuring charges during both 2000 and 2001, as follows:

(millions excent per share dalz) T
Restructuring charges $ 483 $865
(redits for reserve adjustments 15.0) -
Net charges $ 333 $88.5
After-tax impact $ 205 §642
Net earnings per share impact S 05 S 1B

The 2001 charges of $48.3 million are related to preparing Kellogg for
the Keebler integration and continued actions supporting the
Company's growth strategy. Specific initiatives included a headcount
reducticn of about 30 in U.S. and global Company management, ra-
tionalization of product offerings and other actions to combine the
Kellogg and Keebler logistics systems, and further reductions in con-
venience foods capacity in Southeast Asia. Approximately two-thirds
of the charges were comprised of asset write-offs with the remainder
consisting of employee separation benefits and other cash costs.

The 2001 credits of $15.0 million result from adjustments to various
restructuring and asset disposal reserves. With numerous multi-year
streamlining initiatives nearing completion in late 2001, management
conducted an assessment of post-2001 reserve needs, which resulted
in net reductions of $8.8 million for cash outlays and $6.2 million for
asset disposals. (Asset disposal reserves are reported within
Property, net, on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.) The reduction in
cash outlays relates primarily to lower-than-anticipated employee
severance and asset removal expenditures, and higher-than-antici-
pated asset sale proceeds.
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The 2000 charges of $85.5 million consist of $65.2 million for actions
supporting the Company's growth strategy and $21.3 million for a sup-
ply chain efficiency initiative in Europe. Approximately one-half of the
charges for the growth strategy program were comprised of asset
write-offs with the remainder consisting primarily of cash costs asso-
ciated with involuntary employee separation programs. Approximately
500 salaried and hourly positions were eliminated, primarily during
the fourth quarter of 2000. The charges for the European supply chain
program were comprised principally of voluntary employee retirement
and separation benefits. This program resulted in hourly and salaried
headcount reductions totaling 190 during 2000.

Total cash outlays incurred for restructuring programs were approxi-
mately $8 million in 2002, $35 million in 2001, and $68 million in
2000. At the end of 2002, all restructuring programs were complete
and remaining reserves of §1.4 million consisted solely of long-term
contractual obligations for employee severance.

As a result of the Keebler acquisition in March 2001, the Company
assumed $14.9 million of reserves for severance and facility closures
related to Keebler's ongoing restructuring and acquisition-related
synergy initiatives. Approximately $5 million of those reserves were
utilized in 2001, with the remainder being attributable primarily to
noncancelable lease obligations extending through 2006.

The components of the restructuring charges by initiative, as well as
reserve balances remaining at year-end 2002, 2001, and 2000, were:

———

US.operational  Emoyee rerement

streamlining and severance Asset Asset Other
(millions) benefits write-0ffs removal costs (o) Total
Remaining reserve at

December 31, 1399 S04 S- $281 S- 3495
Amounts utilized during 2000 (200) - (174) - @314
Remaining reserve at

Dacember 31, 2000 S 14 S - $10.7 S~ $121
2001 restructuring credits an an (8 - (30)
Amounts utifized during 2001 (3 11 (8.2 - 4
Remaining reserve at

December 31, 2001 $ - S- $ 17 $- S 17
Amounts utilized during 2002 - - (n - an
Remaining reserve at

December 28, 2002\_._\5 - S - § - S - $~

——

Employes refirement
and severance fisset Asset (ther

Pan-Eurcpean
feorganization

(millions) hanefits {a} write-offs rgmoval costs (o} Total
Remalning reserve at

December 31, 1999 (b) S 21 S- $ 12 S- $ 15
2000 restructuring charges 198 - - 17 213

Amounts utilized during 2000 213) - 12 (1.0 (218

Remaining reserve at

December 31, 2000 $10 S- S - S - S 10
Amounts utilized during 2001 (10 - - - (1.0}
Remaining reserve at

December 31, 2001 $ - S- § - S - § -




Australian plant Employes retiremant Consolidated Employee retirement
productivity program and severance Asset Asset Dther and severance Asset Asset Other
{milfions) benefits write-offs removal costs (c) Total (millions) benefits (@) write-offs removal costs (o) Total
Remaining reserve at Remaining reserve at
December 31, 1399 $ 3 S- S B S- § 37 December 31, 1999 $314 S~ $285 $- $599
Amounts utilized during 2000 @3n - (6) ~ @n 2000 restructuring charges 453 299 13 40 865
Remaining reserve at Amouais utilized during 2000 (534) (299) (189 @0 (108
December 31, 2000 S - S- § - S~ S~ Remaining reserve at
= December 31, 2000 $233 $- $169 $- $402
m American Employes retrenent 2007 restructuring charges, net of credits 5.8 275 2 (2 333
overhead activity analysis ~  and severance st Rsset Other Amaunts utlized during 2001 @n @) (138 02 (8
(millions) benefits write-offs removal £osts (c) Total Remaining reserve at
Remaining reserve at December 31, 2001 S 64 $- $ 35 S- $98
December 31, 1899 § 42 S - $10 S - $ 02 Amounts utilized during 2002 (5.0 - (35) - (85
Amounts utilized during 2000 31n - (9 - (36) Remaining reserve at
Remaining reserve at Decembar 28, 2002 § 14 S - S - §- S 14
December 31, 2000 § 1 $- § & - $ 18 (a) Inoludes et {gains) or fosses from pension and postretirement health care curtalment and special termination benefls as fol-
Amaunts utilized during 2001 (8) - (3) - (1.0 lows {refer to Notes 9 and 10):
Remaining reserve at 2001 2000
December 31, 2001 $ 3 S- § 2 S- $ 5 Pan-European reorganization $ - $5
Amounts utlized during 2002 3 - (9 - (5) Global strategy realignment ) 3
Remaining reserve at Consolidated 2 $8
- December 28, 2007 § - $- S - S- $- . {b) Negative ramoval reserves in Eurape result from netting of anticipated proceeds from asset sales with removal costs.
(c) Consist primarily of program-related non-exit costs incurred during the period of the reported charge.
Blobal strategy Employee ratirement (d) Includes inlliaives relater! to preparing Kellogg for the Kesbler integration.
realignment (d) and severance Asset Asset Other
(millions) benefits (8)  write-offs remova C0sts (6) Total =
2000 restrucuring charges SHI1 $299 § 13 323 §682 @é@g@ % Other E@©©M@ @@X@@@S@% ngﬁ
Amauns uized duing 2000 59 (299) a6 03 @D Other income {expense), net includes non-operating items such as in-
Remaining reserve at terest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, charitable dona-
December 31, 2000 $198 §- § 57 $- §255 tions, and gains on asset sales. Other income (expense), net for 2002
2001 restructuring charges, net of credits 63 26 10 33 consists primarily of a $24.7 million credit related to legal settle-
Amouns utiized dring 2001 205 (245 Ch) LY ments. Other income (expense), net for 2000 includes a credit of ap-
Remg;";gié:?;gm . . s s - proximately $12 million related to the 1999 sale of the Lender’s
PA— Sunng o0 (4:7) _ (1:5) ~ (53) Bagels business to Aurora Foods Inc. The total amount consists of ap-
Remaining resenve proximately $3 million for disposal of assets associated with the
December 28, 2002 § 14 5- § - § - $ 14 business which were not purchased by Aurora and approximately $3

miltion for final working capital settlement with Aurora.

Mote B8 EguiRy
Earnings per share

Basic net earnings per share is determined by dividing net earnings
by the weighted average number of commaon shares outstanding dur-
ing the period. Diluted net earnings per share is similarly deter-
mined, except that the denominator is increased to include the num-
ber of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if
all dilutive potential common shares had been issued.
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Dilutive potential common shares are comprised principally of em-
ployee stock options issued by the Company. Basic net earnings per
share is reconciled to diluted net sarnings per share as follows:

Earnings before extraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of acoounting change

HAverage
shares
(miftions, except per share data) Earnings outstanding Per share
2002
Basic $720.9 4084 $1.77
Dilutive empioyse stock aptions - 3.1 (.02)
Diluted $7208 4115 $175
] .
Basic $ 4820 406.1 $119
Dilutive employee stock options - 11 (0
Diluted $ 4820 4012 $118
2000 - :
Basic $ 5877 4058 $1.45
Difutive employee stock options - 2 -
Diluted § 5877 4058 $145

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during a period
except those resulting from investments by or distributions to share-
holders. Comprehensive income for the periods presented consists of
net earnings, minimum pension liability adjustments (refer to Note 9),
unrealized gains and losses on cash flow hedges pursuant to SFAS
No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”, and foreign currency translation adjustments pursuant to
SFAS No. 52 "Foreign Currency Translation” as follows:

Tax
Pretax (expense) After-tax
(miftions) amount benefit amount
2002
Net earnings $ 7204
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency branslation adjustments  § 1§ § - 16
Cash flow hedges:
Unrealized gain (loss) on
cash flow hedges (2.9) 13 (1.6)
Rectassification to net earnings 6.9 @7 4.2
Minimum pension liability adjustments (453.5) 1473 {306.2)
($ 4479) $ 1459 {302.0)
Total comprehensive income $ 4189
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Tax
Pretax (expense) After-tax
(millions) amount benefit amount
2001
Net earnings S 4736
Dther comprehensive incame:
Foreign currency translation adjustments  (§ 50.4) S - (604)
Cash flow hedges:
Unrealized gain (loss) an
cash flow hedges (863) 318 (h44)
Reclassification to net earnings 88 (33) 05
Minimum pension liability adjustments 98) 30 (68)
($ 1417) 5 316 (1187)
Total comprefensive Income S 3575
- W
Pretax (expense) After-tax
(millions) amount benefit amount
2000
Net eamings $ 8877
Other comprehensive income:
Forgign currency translation adjustments (8974) s - 874
Minimum pension liability adjustments (100) 39 (65)
($ 1074) S 35 (1039
Tota!l comprehensive income $ 4838

— — DU

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at year-end con-
sisted of the following:

{milions) R 2002 00

Forelgn currency transfation adjustments (8 4078) (S 469.2)
Cash flow hedges - unrealized net loss (46.3) (489)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (319.5) (13.3)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) {$ 853.4) (§ 5014)

=S e e

MNote € Leases and other
committments

The Company's leases are generally for equipment and warehouse
space. Rent expense on all aperating leases was $89.5 million in 2002,
$100.0 million in 2001, and $36.7 million in 2000. The increase in 2001
rent expense as compared to 2000 relates primarily to operating leases
held by Keebler Foods Company, acquired by the Company in March
2001 (refer to Note 2 for further information). Additionally, the
Company is subject to residual value guarantees and secondary liabili-
ties on operating leases totaling approximately $14 million, for which
liabilities of $.6 million had been recorded at December 28, 2002.




At December 28, 2002, future minimum annual lease commitments
under noncancelable capital and operating leases were as follows:

Long-term debt at year-end consisted primarily of fixed rate is-
suances of U.S. and Euro Dollar Notes, as follows:

Operating Capital
(millions) leases leases
2003 $ 920 $ 18
2004 527 20
2005 416 13
2006 27 13
2007 233 9
2008 and beyond 533 -
Total minimum payments $301.6 S 70
Amount representing interest 1.0
Dbligations under capital feases 60
Obligations due within one year 1.2
Long-term obligations under capital leases S 48

The Company's Keebler subsidiary is guarantor on loans to independ-
ent contractors for the purchase of DSD route franchises. At year-end
2002, there were total loans outstanding of $14.1 million to 526 fran-
chisees. All loans are variable rate with a term of 10 years. Related to
this arrangement, the Company has established a five-year renewable
loan facility and servicing arrangement up to $15.0 million with a fi-
nancial institution. The Company has the right to revoke and resell the
route franchises in the event of default or any other breach of contract
by franchisees. Revocations have been infrequent. The Company's
maximum potential future payments under these guarantees are lim-
ited to the outstanding loan principal balance plus unpaid interest. At
December 28, 2002, the Company had not recorded any liability re-
lated to this arrangement. In accordance with FASB Interpretation No.
45 (refer to Note 1), the Company will recognize the fair value of guar-
antees associated with new loans to DSD route franchisees issued
beginning in 2003. These amounts are expected to be insignificant.

The Company has provided various standard indemnifications in
agreements to sell business assets and lease facilities over the past
several years, related primarily to pre-existing tax, environmental,
and employee benefit obligations. Certain of these indemnifications
are limited by agreement in either amount and/or term and others are
unlimited. Because the Company is not currently aware of any actual
exposures associated with these indemnifications, management is
unable to estimate the maximum potential future payments to be
made. At December 28, 2002, the Company had not recorded any lia-
bility related to these indemnifications.

Note 7 Debt

Notes payable at year-end consisted of commerciat paper borrowings
in the United States and, to a lesser extent, bank loans of foreign
subsidiaries at competitive market rates, as follows;

(dollars in millions) 2002 2001
Effective Effective
Principal interest Principal interest
amount rate amount rate
U.S. commercial paper $409.8 2.0% $ 3208 3.0%
Canadian commerical paper - - 171 2.5%
Dther 1.1 24
$4208 $5133

{mittions) 2002 mm
(a) 4875% U.S. Doltar Notes due 2005 $ 2000 $ 20040
(b  £.625% Euro Dollar Notes due 2004 500.0 5000
() 5.5% US. Doflar Notes dus 2003 6991 3984
(c) B.0% U.S. Dollar Notes due 2006 995.8 9945
(c) 6.8% US. Dollar Notes dug 2011 14927 14318
() 745% U.S. Doliar Debentures due 2031 1,085.8 1.085.3
(dy 449% US. Dollar Notes due 2006 300.0 3750
Other 22.4 563
52958 57013
Less current maturities (776.4) (82.3)

$4,519.4 $5618.0

(a) In October 1998, the Company lssued $200 of seven-year 4.876% fixed rate US. Dollar Nates to replace maturing long-term
debt, In conjunetion with this issuance, the Company settled $200 notional amount of interest rate forward swap agreements,
which, when combined with eriginal issue discount, effestively fixed the interest rate on the debt at 6.07%.

Batance at year end

(h) In January 1997 the Company issued S500 of seven-year 525% fixed sate Curo Dollar Nates. in conjunction with this
issuance. the Company settfed S50 notional amaunt of Interest rata forward swap agresments, which effectively fixed the
interest rate on the debt at 6.364%.

In March 2001, the Company issued $4.800 of long-term debt (nstraments, further described in the tabfe below, grimarly ta
finance the acquisition of Keebler Foods Company (refer to Note 2). Initially. these instruments were privately placed, or sold
outsice the United States, in reliance on exemptions from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"1933 Act"). The Gempany then exchanged new debt securities for these initial debt instruments, with the new debt securities
being substantially identical in all respects to the initial debt instruments. except for being registered under the 1933 Act.
These debt securities contain standard events of default and covenants. The Notes due 2008 and 2011, and the Debentures
due 2031 may be redeemed in whole or part by the Company at any time at prices determined under 2 formufa (but not less
than 100% of the principal amount plus unpaid interest to the redemption date).

In conjunction with this issuance. the Company settied 51300 notional amount of {orward-starting interest rate swaps for
approximately $B8 i cash. The swaps effectively fixed a portion of the interest rate on an equivaleat amount of debt pricr to
issuance. The swaps were designated as cash flow hedges pursuant to SFAS No. 133 {refer to Nota 12). As a result. the loss
on settlement (net of tax benefit) of S98 was recorded in ather comprehensive income, and is being amortized to interest
expense over periods of 5 to 30 years. The preta foss of $B8 is presented in the “Other” saption within the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for 2001. The effective interest rates presented in the following table reflect this amortization
expense, as well as discount on the debt.

2

Principal EﬁsotF
{doliars in millions) amount Net proceeds interest rate
5.5% U.S. Dollar Notes due 2003 $ 18000 § 59974 5,64%
6.0% U.S. Dollar Notes due 2008 10000 9335 6.39%
6.6% U.S. Dalfar Notes due 2011 15000 14812 708%
745% 1.8, Dollar Debentures due 2031 11000 10843 6%
S 46000 S 45870

n September 2002, the Company redesmed $300.7 of the Notes dug 2003 anda subsidiary of the Company issued S400 of
U.S. commercial paper.

=

In November 2001,  subsidiacy of the Company issued S375 of five-year 4.49% fixed rate U.S. Dollar Notes to replace other
maturing debt. These Notes are guaranteed by the Company ang mature ST5 per year over the five-year term. These Notes,
which were privately placed, contain standard warranties, events of default, and covenants. They also require the maintenance
of a specified consolidated interest expense coverage ratie, and limit capital lease obligations and subsidiary debt. In conjunc-
tion with this issuance, the subsidiary of the Company entered into @ $375 notianal USS/ Paund Steriing currency swap,
which effectively sonverted this debt into a 5.30294 fixed rate Pound Sterfing obligation for the duration of the five-year term.

During 2001, the Company entered into a 364-Day Credit Agreement,
which was renewed.in January 2002 and 2003, and a Five-Year Credit
Agreement, expiring in January 2008. The current 364-day agreement
permits the Company or certain subsidiaries to borrow up to $850
million. The five-year agreement permits the Company or certain sub-
sidiaries to borrow up to $1.15 billion {or certain amounts in foreign
currencies). These two credit agreements contain standard war-
ranties, events of default, and covenants. They also require the
maintenance of a specified amount of consolidated net worth and a
specified consolidated interest expense coverage ratio, and limit cap-
ital lease obligations and subsidiary debt. These credit facilities were
unused at December 28, 2002.

At December 28, 2002, the Company had $2.2 hillion of short-term
lines of credit, virtually all of which were unused and available for
borrowing on an unsecured basis.
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At December 28, 2002, the Company had entered into forward inter-
est rate contracts to fix the Treasury component of the coupon rate on
$200 million notional amount of long-term debt expected to be issued
in 2003, as a replacement for other maturing debt.

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt are {in millions):
2003-$776.4; 2004-$583.3; 2005-$279.6; 2008-$1,077.3; 2007-$2.4;
2008 and beyond-$2,603.8.

Interest paid was {in millions): 2002-$386; 2001-$303; 2000-$141.
Interest expense capitalized as part of the construction cost of fixed
assets was (in millions}; 2002-$1.0; 2001-$2.8; 2000-$5.6.

Note 8 Stock compensation

The Company uses various equity-based compensation programs to
provide long-term performance incentives for its global workforce.
Currently, these incentives are administered through several plans, as
described below.

The 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan {the “Plan”) was approved by
shareholders in 2002 and permits eligible employees to purchase
Company stock at a discounted price. The Plan allows for a maximum
of 2,500,000 shares of Company stock to be issued at a purchase price
equal to the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of the stock on the
first or last day of the quarterly purchase period. Total purchases
through the Plan for any employee are limited to a fair market value of
$25,000 during any calendar year. Under this pian, approximately
118,000 shares were purchased during 2002. Additionally, a subsidiary
of the Company maintains a stock purchase plan for its employees.
Subject to limitations, emgloyee contributions to this plan are matched
1:1 by the Company. Under this plan, approximately 82,000 shares
were granted by the Company during 2002 to match an approximately
equal number of shares purchased by employees.

The Executive Stock Purchase Plan was established in 2002 to en-
courage and enable certain eligible employees of the Company to ac-
quire Company stock, and to align more closely the interests of those
individuals and the Company's sharehoiders. This plan allows for a
maximum of 500,000 shares of Company stock to be issued. Under
this plan, approximately 14,000 shares were granted to executives
during 2002 in lieu of cash bonuses.

The 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan {2001 Plan”) provides for benefits
to be awarded to key employees and officers in the form of incentive
and non-qualified stock options, performance shares, performance
units, restricted stock grants, and other stock-based awards. The
2001 Plan was approved by shareholders in 2000 and autharizes the
issuance of up to 26 million shares, with no more than 2.75 million
shares to be issued in satisfaction of performance units, performance-
based restricted shares and other awards (excluding stock options and
stock appreciation rights). Options granted under this plan generally
vest over two years, subject to earlier vesting if a change of control
occurs. Restricted stock grants under this plan generally vest in three
years. Under this plan, the Company made restricted stock grants to
eligible employees of approximately 132,000 shares in 2002 and ap-
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proximately 300,000 shares in 2001. Also under this plan, performance
units were awarded during 2002 to a limited number of senior execu-
tive-level employees for the achievement of cumulative cash flow tar-
gets for a three-year period through year-end 2003 and net sales
growth targets for a three-year period through year-end 2004. If the
performance targets are met, the award of units represents the right
to receive shares of common stock equal to the dollar award valued
on the vesting date. The awards are earned and vest in February 2004
and February 2005. No awards are eamed unless a minimum thresh-
old is attained. The maximum dollar award that could be attained un-
der the programs is $25 million.

The 2001 Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock Plan described
below contain an accelerated ownership feature (“AOF"). An AQF op-
tion is generally granted when Company stock is used to pay the ex-
ercise price of a stock option or any taxes owed. The halder of the op-
tion is generally granted an AQF option for the number of shares so
used with the exercise price equal to the then fair market value of
the Company’s stock. For all AOF options, the original expiration date
is not changed but the options vest immediately.

Prior to approval by shareholders during 2000 of the 2001 Plan, the
Key Employee Long-Term Incentive Plan provided substantially similar
stack-based benefits to executive-level employees. Under this plan,
approximately 100,000 restricted shares of common stock were
granted during 2000 to eligible employees.

The Kellogg Employee Stock Ownership Plan was designed to offer
stock and other incentive awards based on Company performance to
employees who were not eligible to participate in the Key Employee
Long Term Incentive Plan. Options which have been awarded under
this plan generally vest over five years.

Options under all plans described above are granted with exercise
prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock
at the time of the grant and have a term of no more than 10 years, if
they are incentive stock options, or ng more than 10 years and one
day, if they are non-gualified stock options.

The Non-Employee Director Stock Pian was approved by shareholders
in 2000 and allows each eligible non-employee director to receive
1,700 shares of the Company's common stock annually and annual
grants of options to purchase 5,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock. Shares other than options are placed in the Kellogg Company
Grantar Trust for Non-Employee Directors {the “Grantor Trust”). Under
the terms of the Grantor Trust, shares are available to a director only
dypon termination of service on the Board. During 2002, 50,850 op-
tions and 18,700 shares of common stock were granted under this
plan. During 2001, 55,000 options and 17,000 shares were granted.

As permitted by SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” the Company has elected to account for employee
and director stock aption grants under APB Na. 25 “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees.” Accordingly, no compensation cost has
been recognized for these grants.




For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of ~ Employee stock options outstanding and exercisable under these
the options is amortized to expense over the options’ vesting period. plans as of December 28, 2002, were:

Had compensation cost for the stock option plans been determined  ziions, except per stare data)

based on the fair value at the grant date consistent with SFAS No. Outstanding Brersisable
123, the Company’s reported results are reconciled to pro forma re- Weighted
It foll . Weighted average Weighted
Sults as 1ollows: Range of average remaining average
(millians, except per Share data) 2002 2001 2000 erercise Number prarcise  vontractual Number eYBreise
- - prices of aptions price fife (yrs.) of options price
Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax: % E % % Y %
As reported $ 107 5 54 5 25 e . S : " . st
Pio formz $ 528 5 21 5 23 ! | : : :
, -3 135 3 84 3 34
Net arings 7- 50 83 2 50 80 2
hs reported $7208 $4138 $ 5817 . 38'2 : 20‘]
Pro forma $678.8 $4498 § 5671 : : —
Basic net earnings per share: . .
As reputed $ 1 51 5 145 Mote 8 Pension benefits
Pro forma $ 156 SRH $ 140 The Company has a number of U.S. and foreign pension plans to pro-
Diuted net zamings per share: vide retirement benefits for its employees. Benefits for salaried em-
As reportd 5175 S 16 5145 ployees are generally based on salary and years of service, while union
Pro forma $ 185 $ 110 S 140 . .
—-  employee benefits are generally a negotiated amount for each year of

The fair value of each option grant was estimated at the date of grant ~ service. Plan funding strategies are influenced by tax regulations. Plan
using the Black-Schotes option pricing mode! with the following  assets consist primarily of equity securities with smaller holdings of

weighted average assumptions: bonds, real estate, and other investments. investment in Company
- T 2002 2001 7000 common stock represented 2.0% and 1.7% of consolidated plan assets
Risk-free interest rate 3.58% 457% 659% at December 28, 2002, and December 31, 2001, respectively.
Dividend yield 2.92% 3.30% 390% . )
Viatiy 20.71% 891 9543 The components of pension expense were:
Average expected term (years) 3.00 308 317 (millions) 2002 2001 2000
Fair valug of options granted $6.67 $5.05 S460 Service cost $ 570 S 474 S 345
- ' ~ Interest cost 140.7 1245 9u1
Transactions under these plans were: Expected return on plan assets (2175) (192.4) (1433)
(millions) 2002 2001 2[10[]:‘ Amartization of unrecognized
Under optien, beginning of year 370 24 189 transition abligation 3 3 8
Granted 9.2 171 64 Amortization of unrecognized
Exercised (5.2) 1 &) prior service cost 69 656 70
Cancalled 29) 0 (28 Recognized net (gain) loss 15 45 42
Under option, erd of year 38.2 310 234 Curtallment and special termination benefits -
Exercisable, end of year 201 189 137 net (gain) loss - (1.9) 85
Shares avalable, end of year, = Pension income - Company plans (11) (10.5) (5.8)
for stock-bassd awards that may be granted Pension expense - defined contributien plans 29 30 22
under the following plans: Total pension expense (Incoms) § 18 (5 79 (S 38
E:ﬁozzIgg;zyzni;e;nﬂﬁzzgz F:; T] _.s 28 Zg The worldwide weighted average actuarial assumptions at year-end
2000 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan 5 3 3 were:
2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan (a) 0.1 161 260 2002 2001 2000
2002 Employee Stack Purchase Plan 24 - - Discount rate 6.6% 70% 70%
Executive Stock Purchase Plan 5 - - Long-term rate of compensation increase 4% 4.7% 45%
Total shares available, end of year, Long-term rate of return on plan assets 9.3% 105% 104%
for stock-based awards that may be granted 14.2 138 348

(a) All shares are available for stock aptions and stock appresiation rights with no mare than 2.0 million shares remaining to be
{ssued in satisfaction of performance units, performance-based restricted shargs, and other awards,

ATEIage prices per share 2002 2601 20[][)%
Under option, beginning of year $31 $ 34 §38
Granted 33 2 24
Exercised 27 25 26
Cancelled 32 34 6
Under option, end of year $33 $ 31 $34
Exercisable, end af year $34 $ 36 $38
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The aggregate change in projected benefit obligation, change in plan
assets, and funded status were:

(mitions) o 2002 am
Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $2,038.7 $13815
fequisition adjustment (13.4) 6134
Service cost 570 474
Interest cost 140.7 1245
Plan participants’ contributions 1.2 13
Amendments 28.3 T
Actuarial loss 978 a7
Benefits paid (137.2) (1234)
Foreign currency adjustments 46.2 (I
Other 21 7
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $2.2614 §20387
Change in plan assels -
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 18459 $1,4050
Acquisition adjustment (21.49) 5686
Actual retum on plan assets (191.3) (138)
Employer contributions 309.3 238
Plan participants’ contributions 12 13
Benefits paid (133.7) (1218)
Foreign currency adjustments 39.8 (18.2)
(ther 2 2
Fair valug of plan assets at and of year $1,849.5 $1.8453
Funded status (§ 4119) S
Unrecognized net loss 846.7 3340
Unrecognized transition amount 23 24
Unrecognized prior service cast 518 295
Prepaid pension $ 4838 S 1725
Emounts recognized in the Consolitated T *4
Balanee Shaet consist of

Prepaid henefit cost $ 3842 S 274
Accrued benefit fiability (376.1) (140.3)
Intangible assst 275 58
Minimum pensign liabity 473.3 198
Net amount recognized $ 4888 S 175

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and
fair value of plan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets were:

milions) 2002 T

Projected benefit obligation $ 1778.4 § 2041
Accumulated benefit obiigation 1.568.1 1788
Fair value of plan assets 1,340.6 589

All gains and losses, other than those related to curtailment or special
termination benefits, are recognized over the average remaining serv-
ice perigd of active plan participants. Net gains or losses from curtail-
ment and special termination benefits recognized in 2001 and 2000
were recorded as a component of restructuring charges. Refer to Note
3 for further information. At December 28, 2002, a cumulative after-
tax charge of $319.5 million ($473.3 million pretax) was recorded in
other comprehensive income to recognize the additional minimum
pension liability in excess of unrecognized prior service cost.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries sponsor 407(k} or similar sav-
ings plans for active employees. Expense related to these plans was
{in millions); 2002-$26; 2001-$25; 2000-$16.
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MNote 10 Nonpension
postretirement benefits

Certain of the Company's U.S. and Canadian employees are currently
eligible to participate in benefit plans which cover a portion of their
life insurance and retiree health care costs. Benefits for union em-
ployees are contractually bargained. Eligibility for qualified employ-
ees is generally based on attainment of certain age and service re-
quirements. Plan assets consist primarily of equity securities with
smaller holdings of bonds, real estate, and other investments.

Components of postretirement benefit expense were:

(miftions) 2000 000 700
Service cost $ 1.9 $ 107 A
Interest cost 603 497 444
Expected retum on plan assets (26.8) (24.5) 214
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 2.3} an an
Recognized net (gains) losses 9.2 23) (32
Curtailment and special termination

benefits - net gain (16.8) (2 4l
Postretirament benefit expense $ 35.4 § 323 S 263

—

The weighted average actuarial assumptions at year-end were:

‘“ 2002 o mw
Discount rate 6.80% 725% 750%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 9.3% _TGE% 10.5%

The aggregate change in accumulated postretirement benefit obliga-
tion, change in plan assets, and funded status were:

(millions) T 2002 2001
Change in accumulated benefit obligation

fccumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year $895.2 $ 6186
Acquisition adjustment (2.2) 929
Service cost 119 107
Interest cost 603 487
Actuarial foss 80.2 78
Amendments (973) 2
Benefits paid (50.4) (48.3)
Other 8 (4
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $908.5 $8952
Change in pian assets o
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $2126 $2229
Actual return on plan assets (275) (16.4)
Employer contributions 1373 925
Benefits paid (42.5) (469)
(ther 5 5
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $280.4 S028
Funded status ©e8y 66
Unrecagnized net loss 265.6 1884
Unrecognized prior service cost (28.7) (8.3)

Accrued postretirement benefit cost

Amounis recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet caonsist of

Aecrued benefit fiability (8391.3) (§ 5025)

{83813) (3 5025)

The assumed health care cost trend rate is 8% for 2003, decreasing grad-
ually to 5% by the year 2006 and remaining at that leve! thereafter. These
trend rates reflect the Company's prior experience and management’s ex-
pectation that future rates will decline. A one percentage point change in
assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:




[——

One percentage One percentage

(millions) point increase noint decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components S 95 § 17
Effect on postretirement bengfit obligation $1022 $828

All gains and losses, other than those related to curtailment or spe-
cial termination benefits, are recognized over the average remaining
service period of active plan participants. Net gains from curtailment
and special termination benefits recognized in 2001 and 2000 were
recorded as a component of restructuring charges. Refer to Note 3 for
further information. During 2002, the Company recognized a $16.9
million curtailment gain related to a change in certain retiree health
care benefits from employer-provided defined benefit plans to multi-
employer defined contribution plans. The Company contributes to a
voluntary employee benefit association (VEBA) trust for funding of
certain of its nanpension postretirement benefit obligations.

Note 11 Income laxes

Earnings before income taxes, extraordinary loss, and cumulative ef-
fect of accounting change, and the provision for U.S. federal, state,
and foreign taxes on these earnings, were:

(mitions) 2002 2001 W0
Earnings before income taxes,
extraordinary loss, and cumulative
effect of accounting change
United States § 7913 $464.2 $5619
Fareign 353.0 3398 3058
$1,144.3 $8041 $8677
fncome taxes
Currently payable
Faderal $ 1571 $1208 $1340
State 45.2 301 203
Foreign 108.9 998 1201
3i2.2 2508 2814
Deferred
Federal 82.8 531 (12
State 8.4 12 41
Foreign 20.0 172 (43)
111.2 75 (14)
Total income taxes § 4234 §3221 $2800

The difference between the U.S. federal statutory tax rate and the
Company’s effective rate was:

=

2002 2001 2000
US. stautory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Fareign rates varying from 3% -8 -11 -5
State income taves, net of federal benefit 34 25 18
Fareign carnings repatriation 28 - -
Donation of appreciated assets -15 - -
Net change in valuation allowances -2 ] =30
Non-deductible goodwill amortization - 28 B
Statutory rate changes, deferred tax impact - -1 -3
Diher -14 8 -12
Effective income tax rate 37.0% 401% 32.3%

[E—

Generally, the changes in valuation allowances on deferred tax as-
sets and corresponding impacts on the effective income tax rate, as
presented above, result from management's assessment of the

Company’s ability to utilize certain operating loss and tax credit carry-
forwards. For 2000, the change in valuation allowance relates prima-
rily to utilization of U.S. foreign tax credit carryforwards. As a result,
the effective income tax rate was significantly lower in 2000 as com-
pared to either 2001 or 2002.

For 2001, the significant increase in the income tax rate impact of
non-deductible goodwill relates to the Company’s acquisition of
Keebler Foods Company (refer to Note 2). As a result of the Company's
adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002 {refer to Note 1), good-
will amortization expense — and the resulting impact on the effective
income tax rate — has been eliminated in post-2001 years.

Total tax benefits of carryforwards at year-end 2002 and 2001 were
$21.1 million and $23.9 million, respectively. Of the total carryfor-
wards at year-end 2002, $4.8 million expire during 2003 and another
$9.6 million expire within five years. Based on management’s assess-
ment of the Company’s ability to utilize these benefits prior to expira-
tion, the carrying value of deferred tax assets associated with carry-
forwards was reduced by valuation allowances to approximately $6.4
million at December 28, 2002.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities included in the balance sheet
at year-end were:

—— ——————

T Defered fax assels
(miftions) 2002 2001 2002 2001

Cumrent:
Promotion and advertising $ 212 $ 163 $ 78 S
Wages and payroll taxes 303 290 - -
Inventary valuation 14.3 122 16.5 148
Health and posiretiement benefits 53.9 289 A 28
State taxes 172 1 - -
Qperating loss and credit carryforwards 2 2 - -
Deferred intercompany revenue 428 103 75 78
Keebler exit fiabilties 5.7 233 - -
Unrealized hedging losses, net 29.0 27 k| 2
Qther 311 83 57 30
246.5 1839 375 397
Less valuation allowance (2.6} (1.6) - -
2439 188.3 5 387
Norcureent. B — T
Depreciation and asset disposals 9.2 84 348.3 3396
Health and postretirement benefits 2823 185.7 1872 n1
Capitalized interest - - 172 22
State taxes - - 88.3 3
Operating loss and credit carryforwards 20.9 21 - -
Trademarks and other intangibles - - 665.2 5626
Deferred compensation 419 283 - -
(ther 218 362 10.5 162
3761 2828 13187 1.1850
Less vatuation allowance (32.1) (35.1) - -
344.0 2478 1316.7 11850
Total deferred taxes $5879 § 4361 $1,354.2 $12207

At December 28, 2002, foreign subsidiary earnings of approximately
$857 million were considered permanently invested in those busi-
nesses. Accordingly, U.S. income taxes have not been provided on
these earnings.
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Cash paid for income taxes was (in miflions): 2002-$250; 2001-$196;
2000-$246. The 2001 amount is net of a tax refund of approximately
$73 million related to the cash-out of Keebler employee and director
stock options upon acquisition of Keebler Foods Company (refer to
Note 2 for further information).

fote T2 Financial instruments
and credil risk concentration

The fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are based on
carrying value in the case of short-term items, quoted market prices
for derivatives and investments, and, in the case of long-term debt,
incremental borrowing rates currently available on loans with similar
terms and maturities. The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash,
cash equivalents, receivables, and notes payable approximate fair
value. The fair value of the Company's fong-term debt at December
28, 2002, exceeded its carrying value by approximately $565 million.

The Company is exposed ta certain market risks which exist as a part
of its ongoing business operations and uses derivative financial and
commodity instruments, where appropriate, to manage thesg risks. In
general, instruments used as hedges must be effective at reducing
the risk associated with the exposure being hedged and must be des-
ignated as a hedge at the inception of the contract. In accordance
with SFAS No. 133 {refer to Note 1), the Company designates deriva-
tives as either cash flow hedges, fair value hedges, net investment
hedges, or other contracts used to reduce volatility in the transiation
of foreign currency earnings to U.S. Dollars. The fair values of all
hedges are recorded in accounts receivable or other current liabili-
ties. Gains and losses representing either hedge ineffectiveness,
hedge companents excluded from the assessment of effectiveness,
or hedges of translational exposure are recorded in other income (ex-
pense), net. These amounts were insignificant during 2002.

Cash flow hedges

Qualifying derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges when
the hedged item is a forecasted transaction. Gains and fosses on
these instruments are recorded in other comprehensive income until
the underlying transaction is recorded in earnings. When the hedged
item is realized, gains or losses are reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive income to the Statement of Earnings on the
same fine item as the underlying transaction.

The total net loss attributable to cash flow hedges recorded in accu-
mulated other comprehensive income at December 28, 2002, was
$46.3 million, related primarily to forward-starting interest rate swaps
settled during 2001 (refer ta Note 7). This loss is being reclassified
into interest expense over periods of 5 to 30 years. Other insignificant
amounts related to foreign currency and commodity price cash flow
hedges will be reclassified into earnings during the next 18 months.

Fair value hedges

Qualifying derivatives are accounted for as fair value hedges when
the hedged item is a recognized asset, liability, or firm commitment.
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Gains and losses on these instruments are recorded in earnings, off-
setting gains and losses on the hedged item.

Net investment hedges

Qualifying derivative and non-derivative financial instruments are ac-
counted for as net investment hedges when the hedged item is a for-
eign currency investment in a subsidiary. Gains and losses on these
instruments are recorded as a forgign currency translation adjust-
ment in other comprehensive income.

Cther contracts

The Company also enters into foreign currency farward contracts and
options to reduce volatility in the translation of fareign currency earn-
ings to U.S. Dollars. Gains and losses on these instruments are
recorded in other income {expense), net, generally reducing the expo-
sure to translation volatility during a full-year period.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency cash flows
related primarily to third-party purchases, intercompany loans and
product shipments, and non-functional currency denominated third-
party debt. The Company is also exposed to fluctuations in the value
of foreign currency investments in subsidiaries and cash flows related
to repatriation of these investments. Additionally, the Company is ex-
posed to volatility in the translation of foreign currency earnings to
U.S. Dollars. The Company assesses foreign currency risk based pri-
marily on transactional cash flows and enters into forward contracts,
options, and currency swaps to reduce fluctuations in net long or short
currency positions. Forward contracts and options are generally less
than 18 months duration. Currency swap agreements are established
in conjunction with the term of underlying debt issues.

For foreign currency cash flow and fair value hedges, the assessment
of effectiveness is generally based on changes in spot rates. Changes
in time value are reported in other income {expense), net.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate volatility with regard to fu-
ture issuances of fixed rate debt and existing issuances of variable
rate debt. The Company currently uses interest rate swaps and for-
ward interest rate contracts to reduce interest rate volatility and
funding costs associated with certain debt issues, and to achieve a
desired proportion of variable versus fixed rate debt, based on current
and projected market conditions.

- Variable-to-fixed interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow

hedges and the assessment of effectiveness is based on changes in
the present value of interest payments on the underlying debt. Fixed-
to-variable interest rate swaps are accounted for as fair value hedges
and the assessment of effectiveness is based on changes in the fair
value of the underlying debt, using incremental borrowing rates cur-
rently available on loans with similar terms and maturities.




Price risk

The Company is exposed to price fluctuations primarily as a result of
anticipated purchases of raw and packaging materials. The Company
uses the combination of long cash positions with suppliers, and ex-
change-traded futures and option contracts to reduce price fluctua-
tions in a desired percentage of forecasted purchases over a duration
of generally less than 18 months.

Commodity contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The as-
sessment of effectiveness is based on changes in futures prices.

Credit risk concentration

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperfor-
mance by counterparties on derivative financial and commodity con-
tracts. This credit loss is limited to the cost of replacing these con-
tracts at current market rates. Management believes the probability
of such loss is remote.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to con-
centrations of credit risk, are primarily cash, cash equivalents, and
accounts receivable. The Company places its investments in highly
rated financial institutions and investment-grade short-term debt in-
struments, and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one entity.
Historically, concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts re-
ceivable have been limited due to the large number of customers,
generally short payment terms, and their dispersion across geo-
graphic areas. However, there has been significant worldwide con-
solidation in the grocery industry in recent years. At December 28,
2002, the Company’s five largest customers globally comprised ap-
proximately 20% of consolidated accounts receivable.

Note i3 Quarterly finencizl data
{unauditad)

Historically, the Company has reported interim periods on a calendar-
quarter bases. Certain business units within the Company have fol-
lowed a thirteen week quarter convention, commonly referred 1o as
“4-4-5" because of the number of weeks in each sub-period of the
quarter. In order to facilitate conversion to SAP software and to
achieve greater consistency and efficiency, all business units of the
Company began reporting interim results on a "4-4-5" basis in 2002.
Because prior-year results have not been restated, year-over-year
comparability of quarterly results was significantly impacted, due
principally to the change in reporting dates for the Keebler business.
Keebler's 2001 interim results were reported for the periods ended
March 24, June 16, October 6, and December 28; whereas, 2002 in-
terim results were reported for the periods ended March 30, June 28,
September 28, and December 28. However, the impact of this change
on comparability of full-year results was insignificant.

(millions, except

per share data) Nat sales Gross profit
2002 2001 2002 2001
First $2,0618 14717 $ 8846 $ 6150
Second 2,125.1 19892 963.6 8670
Third 21365 21908 973.1 9889
Fourth 1980.7 16969 9138 8621
$8,304.1 $75484 $3,735.1 $3.3370
= Tarnings before o —
extraordinary loss and Earnings per share before
cumulative effect of extraordinary loss and cumufative
accounting change effect of accounting change
2002 200 2002 2001
Basic Diluted Basic Dilgted
First $ 1525 S5 $.37 $.37 §.23 §23
Second 1738 1148 42 42 8 28
Third 2035 1503 50 49 31 3
Fautth 1910 1248 47 47 3 ki
$7209 $4820
= Net earnings Net earnings per share
2002 2001 2002 2001
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
First $ 1528 $ 841 $.37 $.37 bl $.
Second 173.8 1148 42 42 28 28
Third 2035 1503 50 49 3 3
Fourth 1910 1248 47 47 31 31

$7209 $4136

The principal market for trading Ketlogg shares is the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE). The shares are also traded on the Boston, Chicago,
Cincinnati, Pacific, and Philadelphia Stock Exchanges. At year-end
2002, the closing price (on the NYSE) was $34.42 and there were
41,965 shareholders of record.

Dividends paid per share and the quarterly price ranges on the NYSE
during the last two years were:

Dividend Sock pice
2002 - Quarter per share High Low
Fist $ 2525 $34.95 $29.35
Second 2525 36.89 32.75
Third 2525 35.63 30.00
Fourth 2525 36.06 4

$1.0100
001~ Quarter B
First § 252 $2810 $ 2500
Secend 2528 2900 25.18
Third 2528 3358 28861
Fourth 2525 3 2890

$1.0100

= s}
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MNote 4 Operating segmenis
Kellogg Company is the world’s leading producer of ready-to-eat ce-
real and a leading producer of convenience foods, including cookies,
crackers, toaster pastries, cereal bars, frozen waffles, meat alterna-
tives, pie crusts, and ice cream cones. Principal markets for these
products include the United States and United Kingdom.

The Company is managed in two major divisions - the United States
and International - with Internationat further delineated into Europe,
Latin America, Canada, Australia, and Asia. Thus, the Company's re-
portable operating segments under SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” consist of the
United States, Europe, and Latin America. All other geographic areas
have been combined under the quantitative threshold guidelines of
SFAS No. 131 for purposes of the information presented below.

The measurement of operating segment results is generally consis-
tent with the presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
and Balance Sheet. Intercompany transactions between reportable
operating segments were insignificant in all periods presented.

(mitions) 2002 T 2000

Net sales (a)
United States $6,525.4 §48834 §3,2638
Eurape 1469.8 1,3807 14622
Latin America 6311 650.0 6243
All gther operating segments 6718 648.3 7161
Corporate - - 205
Consolidated $8,304.1 S 75484 $6,0867

‘Segment operating profit

United States (&) $10730 S 8784 § 6703
Eurape 2525 2455 2352
Latin America 170.1 71 161.7
All other apsrating segments 104.8 103.1 692
Carporate (8) (919) (90.9) (679)
Consalidated $1508.1 $1,3048 $1.0885
Amortization eliminated by SFAS No. 142 (d) - (103.5) (122)
Restructuring charges (b) - (33.3) (86.5)
Operating profit as reported $1508.1 S 11679 S 9898
Restructuring charges () -
United States $ - S 285 $ 20
Europe - (2 267
Latin America - n 146
Alf other operating segments - 14 28.7
Corporate - 21 145
Consolidated § - S 333 S BBA
Bepreciation and amortization -

United States $ 2197 S 58 S 1314
Europe 65.7 h35 i

Latin America 171 N7 72

All other operating segments 30.0 34 408
Corporate 158 501 441

Consofidated $ 3484 S 4388 S 2908

&8 Kellogg Company

(millions) T 2001 W
Interest expense
{nited States $ 33 S 57 S -
Europe 22.3 23 47
Latin Amarica 6 28 1
All ather operating segments 34 15 4
Corporate 3616 3388 1323
Consolidated § 3912 S 351k S 1375
Tncome faxes excluding charges (©) o
United States (8) $ 3488 § 2305 S 1648
Europe 46.3 544 434
Latin America 425 4053 400
All other operating segments 222 18.1 m
Corporate {g) (374) (134) 430
Consafidated $ 4234 § 3343 $ 3023
Effect of charges — (128) 223
Income taxes as reparted $ 4234 § 3221 S 2800
Totat assets -
United States $9,784.7 §96344 $ 21786
Eurape 1,687.3 18010 11025
Latin America 3374 4155 4446
Alf other operating segments 554.0 6812 6278
Corporate 6,112.1 56976 20612
Elimination entries (8,256.2) (7861.1) (1528.7)
Consolidated $10,219.3 10,3686 $4.3860
Hdditions o long-lived assels -
United States $ 1974 $5601.2 S 1354
Europe 334 438 nr
Latin America 13.6 nr 387
All other operating segments 10.1 108 421
Corporate 1.2 295 1381
(onsolidated § 2857 $ 58970 S 4718

= —

(2) 2007 and 2000 net sales restated for the retroactive application of EITF No. 01-09. Refer to Note 1 for further information,
{b) Refer to Note 3 for further information on restructuring charges.

(c) Charges include those described in (b plus extraordinary foss and cumulative effect of accounting change in 2001, reported
net of tax. Refer to Nate 1 for further information.

(d) 2001 and 2000 operating segment profitahility has been restated to reflect the pro forma impact of SFAS No. 142, Refer to
Note 1 for further information.

(e) 2001 and 2000 U.S. operating segment profitability and income taxes have been restated for an internal realiocation of aver-
head between Corporate and U.S. operations.

The Company’s largest customer, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and its affili-
ates, accounted for approximately 12% of consolidated net sales dur-
ing 2002 and 11% in 2001, comprised principally of sales within the
United States. Sales to any single customer during 2000 were less
than 10%.

Supplemental geographic information is provided below for net sales
to external customers and long-lived assets:

{milions) 2002 2001 B

flel sales
United Statas $ 5,525.4 $ 48894 $ 32636
United Kingdom 6674 8228 6518
Other foreign countries 2,13 20361 21713
Consolidated $ 83041 S 75484 $ 6,086.7

Long-lived assefs -
United States $ 74342 $ 12758 $ 15935
United Kingdom 4235 5268 5354
Other foreign countries 584.6 8515 11540
Consoficatad $ 84423 $ 84540 832428




Supplemental praduct information is provided below for net sales to  (millions)

— )

| external customers: Intangible assets subject to amortization (a):

— Gross carrying amount Accumulated amartization
{milfions) 2002 2001 2000 2002 il 2002 o001
e iates Tatemats $285 S5 s 12 ST61

Reta?l channgl cereal $ 19521 $18404 $18063 Other 67 £8 34 30

Retait channet snacks 23335 1327 41h o $362 3 $208 ST

Other 1,239.8 11263 10398 S0 e
International Amortization expense (b) § 15 S 88

Cereal 2,476.9 23815 25305 =

Canvenience foods 3018 9775 998 (a) Pri?;gne:[( imuums presented in accordance with current-year classification under SFAS No. 142 - refer to Note 1 for further
Consaicaed $8308.1 e S0 e

(b) The estimated aggregate amartization expense for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years is approximately $1.5 per year.

—

Intangible assets not subject to amertization (a):

Note 15 Suppiementai financial T p———

statement data 2002 2001
(millions) Trademarks $1404.0 514040
Consolidated Statement of Earnings 2002 200 2000 Direct store doar (DSD) defivery system 5789 5789
Research and development expense $ 1064 § 1102 § 1184 Other 215 5190
Advertising expanse § 5887 S 5192 $ 6042 Total $2,010.4 $ 20341

(a) Prior-year amounts presented in accordance with current-year classification under SFAS No. 142 - refer to Nate 1 for further
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 2002 01 m rioaan '
ACcounts recevable $ 281 S 1008 S 11 (b} Tatal carrying amount is net of accumufated amortization through December 31, 2001.
Inventories (26.4) 158 545 Ehfanges in the carrying amount of goadwill (a):
Quher current assets 711 (178) (202) Latin Donsolr-
hocaunis payable 13 a5 51 (millions) United States ~ Europe America {tther (¢) dated
Other current liabilties 1512 129 35) anuary 1, 2001 § 2058 - S8 $18. 8 2062
Changes in operating asses Aquisition 29198 - - A 29193
and liahilities $ 2653 § 2534 s 2 Amartization {808 - - ) 0D
— Foreign currency remaasurement
(m;!hor{s} impact and other - - 23 (2 21
Consolidated Balance Shest 2002 A Decemoer 31, 2001 S0 - a1 514 5a0ms
;‘y’:j;:;:':;ht;ubnm . $ 6610 § 820 $FAS No. 142 reclassicaton (b) 163 - - - 43
) counts (r60) 3 Purchase accounting adjustments 222 - - - 222
Other recaivables ‘ 76.0 838 Dispositions {303) {309
Accounts receivable, net $ 7410 S 7623 ‘
Foreign curmency remeasurement
Raw materials and supplies § 1722 $ 07 ‘
Finished goods and materials in process 4310 4038 mpect end oler _ - {0 _ 0D
& - : December 28, 2002 $3,103.2 - $20 $14 $3,106.6
Inventories § 6032 S 5145 =
Deferted Income axes s 2078 S 515 {a) Total carrying amount is net of accumulated amortization through December 31, 2001,
(hher prepaid assts 1108 1818 (b afﬁe?r?ézgvguj:;tr:; r?mzngglzle no longer meets separability criteria under SFAS No. 142 and has been rectassified to good
Other current assets § 3186 § 8334 (e} Qther aperating segments (nclude Australia, Asia, and Ganada,
Land $ 628 § 857
Buildings 1,345.5 12181
Machinery and equipment 4,284.8 40745
Construction in progress 1596 1927
Accumulated depreciation (3,012.4) (2653.2)
Property, net $2,8402 $23528
Goodwil $3,106.6 §30695
Dther intangibles 2,046.6 20102
-Accumulated amortization (20.6) (181
Qther 483.1 3932
Other assets $5,615.7 §5,5138
Accrued income faxes $ 1517 § T3
Accrued salaries and wages 228.0 2335
Accrued advertising and promotion 309.0 2332
Accrued interest 123.2 124
Qther 386.7 318
Other current fiabilities $1,198.8 $10345
Nonpension postretirement benefits $ 3208 S 471
Deferred income taxes 986.4 9498
Other 473.8 2458
ger liabilities $1,789.9 $156705
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As discussed in Note 1, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on January 1, 2002. The provisions of
SFAS No. 142 are adopted prospectively and prior-period financial statements are not restated. Comparative earnings information for prior peri-

ods is presented in the following tables:

Earnings before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change

mamings

Earnings {millions}

Eamings (miltions)

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Originally reported $7208 $ 4820 $ 5877 Originally reported $7209 S 4136 $ 5877
Goodwill amortization - 538 87 Goodwill amortization - 590 5.7
[ntangibles no longer amortized - 260 39 intangibles no longer amortized - 260 39
Totat amartization § - $ 850 $ 98 Tota amortization § - S 850 $ 88
Camparable $7208 $ 5670 S 5973 Comparable §7208 $ 5585 $ 5873
ershere - Base T e share - Base 0 -
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Originalty reported $ w7 S 118 S 145 Originally reported § 177 NIRRT S 145
Boodwilt amortization - 15 0 Goodwill amortization - 15 n
Intangibles no longer amortized - 08 01 Intangibles no longer amortized - 06 0
Total amortization $ - S 2 S 0”2 Total amortization § - s A s o
Gomparable § 17 S 140 S 4 Comparable $ 177 N 71‘38 S 14
Tor share - Dinfed - Per share - Diluted —
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Originally reported § 175 S 118 S 145 Originally reparted $ 175 S 118 § 145
Goodwill amartization - 18 0 Goodwill amortization - 15 01
Intangibles nc longer amortized - 06 fill Intangibles no longsr amertized - 08 il
Total amortization $ - NI s Tofal amortization § - s N § m
Comparable § 175 § 133 S 1.47: Comparable § 175 § 13 S 14
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Wanagement’s
Responsibility for
Financlal Statements

The management of Kellogg Company is responsible for
the reliability of the consolidated financial statements and
related notes. The financial statements were prepared in
conformity with accounting principles that are generally ac-
cepted in the United States, using our best estimates and
judgements as required.

We maintain a system of internal controls designed to pro-
vide reasonable assurance of the reliability of the financial
statements, as well as to safeguard assets from unauthorized
use or disposition. Formal policies and procedures, including
an active Ethics and Business Conduct program, support the
internal controls, and are designed to ensure employees ad-
here to the highest standards of personal and professional
integrity. We have established a vigorous internal audit
program that independently evaluates the adequacy and
effectiveness of these internal controls.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meets regularly
with management, internal auditors, and independent auditors
to review internal control, auditing, and financial reporting mat-
ters. Both our independent auditors and internal auditors have
free access to the Audit Committee.

We believe these consolidated financial statements do not
misstate or omit any material facts. Our formal certification
to the Securities and Exchange Commission is made with
our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The independent auditing firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers
was retained to audit our consolidated financial statements
and their report follows.

. utlerrez
Cha/rman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

ﬂft( f
Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

e Bororasd)

oromisa
Senior Vice President
Chief Accounting Officer

Report of
Independent
Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLFP

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
of Kellogg Company

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
of shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Kellogg Company
and its subsidiaries at December 28, 2002 and December
31, 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 28, 2002, in conformity with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial state-
ments, the Company changed its method of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets in conformity with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" which was adopted
as of January 1, 2002,

Battle Creek, Michigan
January 29, 2003
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Suppiemenial Finencial Information Contracts to purchase foreign currency

Notional Exchange Fair
Quamntitative & qualitative disclosures related to Currency value rats value
market risk sensitive instruments Currency purchased exchanged (milfions) (fe/1USS) {miflions)
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2000
The Company is exposed to certain market risks which exist as a part  Austalan Doter @ US, Dollr $180 S0 118 198§ - §-
of its ongoing business operations and uses derivative financial and Canaien Dollar (2) U, Dollar 118 100 187 180 () -
commodity instruments, where appropriate, to manage these risks. ~ daeneseten(d  US Dollr 67 - nesE - 1 -
The Company, as a matter of policy, does not engage in trading or U8 27 ® dapaness ten 2229 MeTE 13158 - 2
. ) . Pound Sterling {c) Japanese Yen 4 5 64 .8 - -
speculative transactions. Refer to Note 12 within Notes to hstlan Dila @) dpanese Yoo " 9 10 301 _ |
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on account- Singapure Dollr (©) Japanese Yen § - s - _ -
ing policies related to derivative financial and commodity instruments. furo (a) U8, Dollar - 4 - - 9
U.S. Dollar (c) Canadian Dallar 37 34 158 160 (&) 5
Foreign exchange risk US. Daller (5) ustraian Dollr - u - - -
The Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency cash flows i Selne@ - St Afan nd 730 &2 B (1) 13
. . . US. Dallar (c) South African Rand 4 4 1077 1208 (1) -
related to third-party purchases, mtercompfany loang and product ship- Pound Stig (& S, Dolr 53 4 180 B B ~
ments, and non-functional currency denominated third-party debt. The 75 S 758 5515 EEE
Company is also exposed to fluctuations in the value of foreign cur- @ et o sing sl o bl =
rency investments in subsidiaries and cash flows related to repatria- (6) hatge of entcpatad tansackons
tion of these investments. Additionally, the Company is exposed to Option collar contracts to purchase foreign currency —
volatility in the translation of foreign currency earnings to U.S. Dollars. Nationa! Exchange Fair
Primary expasures include th‘e U.S. Dollar versus the British Ppund, Ebr’giggé . Sx“g’h?ﬂzye . (m%?s) (fcﬁbess) (m:/a/llfn .
Euro, Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, and Mexican Peso, and in the 002 00 200 507 2002 20]
case of inter-subsidiary transactions, the British Pound versus the Put  cal  Pu Cal
Eura. The Company assesses foreign currency risk based primarily on US Dolr @) Mewioan Peso_$427 S - 1081 1042 - - $18 §-
transactional cash flows and enters into forward contracts, options, {6 hedge of anticipated rznsactions
and currency swaps to reduce fluctuations in net long or short cur-  Gption collar contracts o sell foreign currency T
rency positions. Forward contracts and options are generally less than Notianat Exchange Fair
. . - Currency Currency value rate valug
18 months duration. Currency swap agreements are established in recaived (milions) (GAUSS) (milions)
conjunction with the term of underlying debt issuances. 2002 J00] 2002 9001 2002 2001
The tables helow summarize forward contracts, options, and currency ‘ Put - Gall R Gl
.. Furo (c) Pound Sterfing $20.8  $- 157 154 ~ - 83 s
swaps held at year-end 2002 and 2001. All of these derivatives are Moo US Dl 540 - 1150 980 ~ ~ PR
valued in U.S. Dollars using year-end exchange rates, are hedges of 7 $48 - 60 s
anticipated transactions, translational exposure, or existing assets or o Yl of exsing st of s
liabilities, and mature within 18 months. (0) hadge o antisated transastions
Contracts to sell foreign currency Currency swaps (milfions) -
National Exchange Fair Instrument Year of maturity Fair value
Currency valug rate valug characterisiics 002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2082 2000
Curency sol reoeied (milions) (/1USS) (mitfons) hedge of exstng Nt amh S50 S50 §750 S50 S50 (8333) (599)
2002 2000 2002 2001 2002 2001 ot It
New Zezland Dollar ()  Australian Qolar ~ § 9.4 § - 2.04 - (85 §- 3y Paund Seting/ Pay B0 530%% S300% 5302%  5300%
furo ) U, Ootar w8 - W= (8 - US Dol Reosie 44000 4400 4400 SO0 4490
Pound Sterfing (a} () U.S. Daller 104.1 - 159 - (1.2) - =
Canadian Dollar (a) U.S. Dollar 108.2 - 64 - 5 -
Eur (c) Pound Sterling 208 38 88 110 (.6) (9)
Swadish Krona (o) Pound Sterling 8.6 - 9.10 - (3 -
Swiss Frane (¢) Pound Sterling 43 - 141 - (1)) -
Norwegian Krone (¢) ~ Pound Starling 34 - 743 - 1) -
Pound Sterfing (c) Danish Krone 56 120 56 8 8 i
Total $3233 5488 ($33 s

(2) hedge of existing assets or liabilties
(b hedge of translation expasure
(c) hedge of anticipated transactions
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Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate volatility with regard to fu-
ture issuances of fixed rate debt and existing and future issuances of
variable rate debt. Primary exposures include movements in U.S.
Treasury rates, London Interbank Offered Rates (LIBOR), and commer-
cial paper rates. The Company currently uses interest rate swaps and
forward interest rate contracts to reduce interest rate volatility and
funding costs associated with certain debt issues, and to achieve a
desired proportion of variable versus fixed rate debt, based on current
and projected market conditions.

The following tables provide infarmation on the Company's signifi-
cant debt issues and related hedging instruments at year-end 2002
and 2007 (refer to the table on page 50 for currency swaps related to
debt issues). For foreign currency-denominated debt, the information

is presented in U.S. Dollar equivalents. Variable interest rates are
based on effective rates or implied forward rates as of year-end
2002. Refer to Note 7 within Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information.

Mrest rate swaps (miflions)

Fair value
2002 2001
($4.0) §-

Insirumen Year of maturity
characteristics 2003
hedge of future debt issus Notional amt, §16250
pay fixed/receive variable Pay 240%
1.40%

Receive

Forward interest rate contracts (millions)

Notional Contract Fair
Instrument valug 1ate value

characteristics 2002 200t 2002 2001
hedge of future cebt issue $200.0 $- (82.0) §-

335%

Significant debt issues (millions)

Debt Principal by year of maturity

Fair value

characteristics 2002 2003 2004

2006 2006 2m 2031 2002 200

11.5. Dollar $ 6933
fixed rate 55000
effective rate (3) 5.540%

$ 7058 S 7178

S 5000
5.625%
8.354%

Euro Dollar
fixed rate
effective rate (2)

$ 5223 $5183

LS. Dallar
fixed rate
effective rate (a)

2000 $ 2136
4875%
B.OT0%

S 1911

11.8. Doltar
fixed rate
effective rate (2)

$ 10000
8.000%
B.390%

$1085.0  $10243

U8, Dollar
fixed rate
effective rate (a)

51,0000
6.500%
7080%

$1689.0  §15423

U.S. Doflar
fixed rate
effective rate (a)

$1.1060
7430%
1620%

$13365  S1.1667

U.S. Dotlar S 750
fixed rate 4.490%
effective rate (b) 5.302%

§ 7l
4430%
5.302%

§ 1D
4.430%
5.302%

0 § 0
4.430% 4490%
5.302% 5.302%

$ 39 $ 3674

U8, commersial

paper S 3208
weighted average

variable 3.0% 20%

§ 4098

$ 4098 53208

Canadian commercial

paper § i § -
weighted average

variable 25%

S

(a) Effective fixed interest rate paid, as a result of debt discount and settlement of forward interest rate swap at date of debt issuance.

(b) Effective fixed interest rate paid. as a result of relatsd USS/Pound Sterfing currency swap.
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Price risk

The Company is exposed to price fluctuations primarily as a result of
anticipated purchases of raw and packaging materials. Primary expo-
sures include corn, wheat, soybean ail, sugar, cocoa, and paperboard.
The Company uses the combination of long cash positions with sup-
pliers, and exchange-traded futures and option contracts to reduce
price fluctuations in a desired percentage of forecasted purchases
over a duration of generally less than 18 months. The table below
summarizes futures positions held at year-end 2002. The fair values
of commodity contracts held at year-end 20071 were insignificant, and
did not have a material impact an the Company's earnings or cash
flows during 2002.

Commodity contracts (milfions except contract price per volume)

Contrast
Contract price per unit Contract
Position yolume volume amount Fair value
Com - long 13 bushels S 245 § 32 S -
Wheat - long 5.7 bushels 349 199 (10
Suger - long o A owt .76 23 2

For all derivative financial and commodity instruments presented in
the tables on pages 50-5Z, changes in fair values of these instru-
ments and the resuiting impact on the Company's cash flows and/or
earnings would generally be offset by changes in values of underlying
transactions and positions. Therefore, it should be noted that the ex-
clusion of certain of the underlying exposures from these tables may
be a limitation in assessing the net market risk of the Company.

Company




Rellogg USA

Products

Kellogg's® cereals, croutons,
breading and stuffing products

Kellogg's® Corn Flakes®, Kellogg's Frosted Flakes®, All-Bran@,
Apple Jacks®, Corn Pops®, Crispix®, Froot Loops®,

Honey Crunch Corn Flakes®, Mini-Wheats®, Raisin Bran Crunch@,
Rice Krispies®, Smart Start®, Special K@, Variety® pack cereals
Keebler® cookies, crackers, pie crusts, ice cream cones

Pop-Tarts® toaster pastrigs

Nutri-Grain®, Rice Krispies Treats®, Nutri-Grain Twists™,
Special K® cereal bars

Eggo® waffles, pancakes
Cheez-1t® crackers, snacks
Murray®, Famous Amos® cookies
Austin® snacks

Morningstar Farms®, Natural Touch®, Loma Linda®, Worthington®
meat and dairy alternatives

Kashf@® cereals, nutrition bars and mixes
Kellogg's Krave™ refueling bars

Manufacturing Locations

San Jose, California Grand Rapids, Michigan

Athens, Georgia
Atlanta, Georgia
Augusta, Georgia
Columbus, Georgia
Macon, Georgia
Rome, Georgia
Chicago, !llinois
Des Plaines, lllingis
Kansas City, Kansas
Florence, Kentucky
Louisville, Kentucky
Pikeville, Kentucky
Battle Creek, Michigan

Omaha, Nebraska

Blue Anchor, New Jersey
Cary, North Carolina
Charlotte, North Carolina
Cincinnati, Ohio
Fremont, Ohio
Worthington, Ghio
Zanesville, Ohio
Lancaster, Pennsylvania
Muncy, Pennsylvania
Memphis, Tennessee
Rossville, Tennessee

i

Kellogg [International
Products

Kellogg's@ cereals, breading products, cereal bars

All-Bran®, Choco Big®, Choco Krispies®, Chocos®, Coco Pops®@,
Choco Pops®, Corn Frosties®, Crispix®, Crunchy Nut Corn Flakes®,
Day Dawn®, Extra®, Froot Loops®, Froot Ring™, Frosties®,

Fruit 'n Fibre®, Just Right®, Nutri-Grain®, Optima®, Smacks®,
Special K®, Sucrithos®, Zucaritas® cereals

Nutri-Grain®, Rice Krispies Squares®, Rice Krispies Treats®,
Special K@, Kuadri Krispis®, Day Dawn®, Coco Pops®, Crusli®,
Sunibrite®, Nutri-Grain Twists®, K-time®, Flevenses®, Milkrunch®,
Be Natural®, [ CMs® cereal bars

Pop-Tarts® toaster pastries
Eggo® waffles

Kaos® snacks

Keloketas® cookies
Komplete® biscuits

Vector™ meal replacement products,
energy bar nutritional supplements

Winders® fruit snacks

Manufaciuring Locations

Pilar, Argentina
Brisbane, Australia
Charmhaven, Australia
Sydney, Australia

Sao Paulo, Brazil
London, Ontario, Canada
Guangzhou, China
Bogota, Colombia
Guayaquil, Ecuador
Bremen, Germany
Manchester, Great Britain

Wrexham, Great Britain
Guatemala City, Guatemala
Taloja, India

Takasaki, Japan
Linares, Mexico
Queretaro, Mexico
Springs, South Africa
Anseong, South Korea
Valls, Spain

Rayong, Thailand
Maracay, Venezuela

Kellogg C.omAaniy strives to be DEi’ENBABlE
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G B T4 [ .

Cnly one
insider on Board

No insiders on the
Audit, Compensation, or
Nominating commitiees

Yaried experience
and background

Board meets
regularly without CEO

Directors are subject to
stock ownership guidelines

Board performance
is evaluated annually

E= Executive Committee

A= Audit Committee

C= Compensation Commitiee

F= Finance Committee

M= Consumer Marketing Committee

N= Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee

S= Social Responsibility Committee
*Committee Chairman

)

L. Danief Jorndt
(AM)

Chairman, Retired
Walgreen Co.
Deerfield lllinois
Age 61

Elected 2002

Ann Meclaughlin Korologos
(EA'CMN)

Senior Advisor

Benedetto, Gartland & Company, Inc.
New York, New York

Chairman Emeritus

The Aspen Institute

Aspen, Colorado

Age 61

Elected 1989

Carlos . Gutierrez
(=)

Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer
Kellogg Company

Age 49

Elected 1999

Claudio X. Gonzalez
(EC*MFN)

Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer
Kimberly-Clark de Mexico
Mexico City, Mexico

Age 68

Elected 1990




Gordon Gund (right)
(E.CEMNY

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Gund Investment Corporation
Princeton, New Jersey
Age 63

Elected 1986

Dorothy A. Johnseom (far right)
(AFM,S)

President

Ahlburg Company

Grand Haven, Michigan

Age 62

Elected 1988

Chairman and Chief ,
Executive Officer !
International Paper Company {
Stamford, Connecticut

Age 64

Elected 2000

William D. Perez (far right)
(AM)

John L. Zabriskie (far left)
(EACF N)

President i

Lansing Brown Investments, LLC.
Boston, Massachusetts

Age 63

Elected 1985

Benjamin 8. Carson, Sr., M.D. (left)
(EN,S?)

Professor and Director of

Pediatric Neurosurgery

The John Hopkins Medical

Institutions

Baltimore, Maryland

Age 51

Elected 1997

John T. Dillon (right) =
(AF) .

President and Chief Executive Officer
S. C. Johnson & Son, inc.

Racine, Wisconsin

Age b5
Elected 2000

William C, Richardson (far left)
(ECFMS)

President and

Chief Executive Officer

W. K. Kellogg Foundation

Battle Creek, Michigan

Age 62

Elected 1996

James M. Jenness (left)

(FM,S)

Chief Executive Officer

Integrated Merchandising Systems, LLC
Chicagpo, Illinois

Age 56

Elected 2000

Kellogg Company 5%



CorrPoRATE COFEFICERS

Carlos M. Gutierrez*
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer
Age 49

lohn A. Bryant*
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
Age 37

Alan F. Harris*

Executive Vice President
President, Kellogg International
Age 48

Janet Langford Kelly”

Executive Vice President

Corporate Development and Administration
General Counsel and Secretary

Age 45

A. D. BDavid Mackay*
Executive Vice President
President, Kellogg USA
Age 47

Lawrence J. Pilon*®
Executive Vice President
Human Resources

Age 54

King T. Pouw*
Executive Vice President
Operations and Technology
Age 51

Jeffrey W. Montie*
Senior Vice President
President

Morning Foods, Kellogg USA
Age 41

BE Kellogg Company

Donna J. Banks

Senior Vice President
Research, Quality & Technology
Age 46

Jeffrey M. Boromisa
Senior Vice President
Corporate Controller

Age 47

Arthur A. Byrd
Senior Vice President
Human Resources
Age 56

W. Stephen Perry
Senior Vice President
Finance

Age 60

Celeste A. Clark

Vice President

Corporate and Scientific Affairs
Age 49

George A, Franklin
Vice President

External Affairs

Age 51

Niichael J. Libbing
Vice President
Carporate Development
Age 33

Richard J. Lilly
Vice President
Travel Services
Age 59

Gustavo Martinez

Vice President

President, Kellogg Latin America
Age 48

Timothy P. Mobsby
Vice President

President, Kellogg Europe
Age 47

Gary H. Pilnick
Vice President

Deputy General Counsel
Age 38

H. Ray Shei

Vice President

Chief Information Officer
Age 5?2

Joseph J. Tubilewicz
Vice President
Procurement

Age 55

Joel R. Wittenberg
Vice President
Treasurer

Age 42

*Member of
Executive Management
Committee




SHARE OWNER INFORMATION

Keliogg Company
One Kellogg Square

Battle Creek, Mi 49016-3599
(269) 961-2000

Common Stock:
Listed on the New York Stock Exchange, Ticker Symhol: K

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS:
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

TrANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR,

AND DviDenp DiSBURSING AGENT:

Communications concerning stock transfer, dividend payments, fost
certificates, and change of address should be directed to:

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075

(877) 910-5385

FiscAL AGENT:

6.625% Euro Dollar Notes
Due January 29, 2004

Citibank N.A., London

Canary Wharf

London E14 5LB England

TRUSTEE:
5.50% Notes

Due April 1, 2003
4.875% Notes

Due October 15, 2005
6.00% Notes

Due April 1, 2006
6.60% Notes

Due April 1, 2011
7.45% Debentures

Due April 1, 2031
BNY Midwest Trust Company
2 North LaSalle Street, Suite 1020
Chicago, IL 60602

Dwipeno RenvESTMENT AND STock PURCHASE PLAN:

This plan, available to share owners, allows for full or partial
dividend reinvestment and voluntary cash purchases, with brokerage
commissions and service charges paid by the Company. For details,
contact:

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075
(877)910-5385

INVESTOR RELATIONS:

John P. Renwick, CFA

Vice President, Investor Relations and Corporate Planning
(269) 961-6365

Conmpany ENFORMATION:

Kellogg Company’s website — www.kelloggcompany.com — contains
a wide range of information about the Company, including news
releases, the Annual Report, investor information, nutritional
information, and recipes.

Copies of the Annual Report on audio cassette for visually impaired
share owners, the Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, and other Company information are available upon
request from:

Kellogg Company

P0. Box CAMB

Battle Creek, MI 49016-1986
(800) 962-1413

SHARE QWNER SERVICES:
{269) 961-2380

KeLLoG BETTER GOVERNMENT CORMMITTEE:

This committee is organized to permit Company share owners, €xecu-
tives, administrative personnel, and their families to pool their contri-
butions in support of candidates for elected offices at the federal
level who believe in sound economic policy and real growth, and who
will fight inflation and unemployment, try to decrease taxes, and re-
duce the growth of government. Interested share owners are invited
to write for further information:

Kellogg Better Government Committee
ATTN: Neil G. Nyberg

One Kellogg Square

Battle Creek, MI 43016-3593

Throughout this Annual Report, references in italics represent world-
wide trademarks or product names owned by or assaciated with
Kellogg Company.

Page 7,8.9,10

®© Disney as to Disney elements

©Disney/Pixar as to Disney/Pixar elements

MICKEY'S MAGIX, HUNNY B'S, and MUD & BUGS are trademarks
of Disney Enterprises, Inc.

CARTOON NETWORK and the logo trademarks of Cartoon Network ©2003

SCOOBY-DOO and all refated characters and elements are trademarks
of ® Warner Bros. (S03)

SPIDER-MAN® the Character® & ©2002 Marvel Characters, Inc.
AMERICAN AIRLINES and AAdvantage are marks of American Airlines, Inc.

The mavie “Dr. Seuss’ The Cat in the Hat” © 2003 Universal Studios and DreamWorks
LLC. Based on The Cat in the Hat book and characters TM & © 1957 Dr. Seuss
Enterprises, L.P. Licensed by Universal Studios Licensing LLLP All Rights Reserved.

THE SIMPSONS TM & © 2003 Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation.
All Rights Reserved.

STAR WARS TM, © 2002 Lucasfilm Ltd. & TM. All Rights Reserved.
Used Under Authorization.

TM.® Kellogg Company
© 2003 Kellogg Company

This report is printed on recycled paper.
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